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May 7,2004 

Management Council 
instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

Dear sirs: 

We are pleawd lo subnut to ywr cognizance the resulu of our financia1 audit of the hmd .ccainobility 
siatements and their reconciliation to cash balances of the projecis finanad mth funds granmi ctaargh 
cooperation a p m c n t s  signed wth h e  U.S Agcncy for International Developmeni (heremafia CSAID) 
and Tñe Egyphan Center for Econonuc Studies (hcrcinafier ECES). for the pcnods deailed belou. 
which have been managed by Inshtuto Libertad y Drrnomcia (hereinaficr ILD); as wcll as h e  rrsult of 
our audit of the fuiancial statemenis of ILD for the year ended Decnnbcr 31, 2003 The pmgmms 
reviewed and the penods covered are deiailed below 

LAG-AM)-98-00047-00 "Fonnaliiation of 
Property in Latin America" From January 1 to Apd30.2003 

EEM-A-OO43-0000540 "Program to Create 
and Romote a Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) 
that inciudes the Majority of Poor People " FromMay 1 toDecnnbcr31.2003 

Sub-Agreement ECES S/N "Fomialization 
of Business in Egypt" From January 1 to Sepvmbcr 30. 2003 

1. BACKGROUND 

ILD is a not-for-profit civil association exrmpt from komc m. l u  objectivc is to becomc a 
cultural centre for reflexion, mearch and scimtific discussion in thc humanities. social sc- 
economics. law ami, in general, al1 the disciplines necessary to undersland Pmvian rality and 
find fonns of cultural. social and cconomic development. 



In order to fulfill its objectives, KLD has subscribcd cooperation agrrnncnts with USAID and 
rescarch coopaation agrecment with ECES, for the exeeution of the following pmgmns: 

a) With USAID 

On August 18,1998. ILD and USMD signed the coopaative a-t LAG-AJM-98- 
00047-00 for thc execution of the program "F-lization of Ropary in Lami 
America". The purpose of the program is io assist ILD 10 focus its effom an the 
formalization of assets of the poorcr el-. as a key variable to Rducc their rinrgirul 
situation in developing counmes in Latin Amnca. 

The initial budget approved by USAiD amounted 10 USSó million plus USS2 millkm 
contributed by ILD as s l m d  coa .  By mans of ammdmmts Nos. 3 and 4. of July 17. 
2001 and septrrnber 23,2002, rrspectively, USAiD provided additiaul ñnanciag to the 
program for USS1.45 Mllion, the total appmved budget rraching USS7.45 million. The 
application of indirect cost rata  is not includcd in this cmpcrative a g m t  

The agrrcmcnt began activitics on May 1, 1998. which cnded on Aprd30.2003. 

EEM-A-00-034OOoMO 'Rogrim to Create amd Promote u Estada de Dacck 
(Rule of hw) tbst lncluda Most Poor Peopk" 

On Septernbcr 24.2003, iLD and USAID signed the cooperation agrccmmt EEM-AJM- 
03-00005-00 for the execution of the "Pmgmn to Create and P ~ ~ ~ K N c  an Estdo & 
Derecho (Rule of Law) that Includes the Majority of Poor Poopk". iñe pnpos of the 
program is to execute the following actinties: a) establish üaining catas ,  b) aianr 
programs in coursc and future programs, cf create awarcness and promote the rti\+;ibes 
of the institution, d) üain personncl for the client munuy. e) i m p o n  products and 
servica, and 1) expand the service capacity. 

The total pmgm budget amounts IO USI)5,180.000. of which ami USS25.379.000 wiü 
be financed with USAiD hmds, USSS.W0.300 through s M  costs and USfI3.860.MO 
through third party rrsources. 

Thc agrccmcnt kum effcetin on May 1.2003 and is duc to expire on Apnl M. 2008. 
During the agmment's period of validity, USAiD shatl disbursc to the pmgnm 
USS5.122.000 in the fint year. USS6.090.000 in the sccond year. USSS,OS0.000 in the 
third year, USS5,049,000 in the fourih year and USS4.068.000 in the fifü~ yair. Unda 
the agmment, USMD is rquircd to disburx up to USSó.000.000 f a  pogram expaiss 
diaing h e  pcriod May 1.2003 to April30, 2004. 

S h a d  costr havc bcea apblished in USS627,000 f a  the seami yar, USS1391.700 
for thc thúd yair. USS1,731,000 f a  thc fwrth year, and USS 2.190.600 f a  h e  fifth 
ycu. Aecording to the agmnmt  tenn% no shad  cosis are applied f a  the first m. 



b) With Tbe Egyptira Ceater for Ecoaomic Stndia - ECES 

Agrecment S/N 'Foniuüutloa ofBo*aas in Egypt" 

Thc sub-agremncnt bcgan actinties on Scptcmber 1,1998, and oornplacd iis firn phisc 
on March 3 1.2002. 

An Agranumt for USS1.061.376 was signed with ECES on May 1, 2002. for the 
"Formalization of Business in Egypt". The purpose of this program wss to idmtify 
manners to reduce adminisüative costs and increasc benefiu. so that Egyphpn business 
enter into and mmin in the legal systcm, incrcasing the advantagcs of poor -le io 
participate in the econorny's legal framework. This Agrecment e x p i d  on Apnl 30. 
2003. 

On July 30, 2003, an amcndmcnt to the agreemmt was si& wherrby the program's 
period of validiiy was extended from April 30, 2003 to Scptembcr 30. 2003. and the 
time-table for the paymcnts ECES had to nmke to iLD was modified 

Wc were engaged to perfonn a f m c i a i  audit of the fund accountnbility statcma~is of the 
programs fuianccd thrwgh cooperation agrcements signed with USAiD and a resarrb 
cwpcration agrecment signed with ECES. which are dcscribcd on pagc 1 hcrcin, and harc bcni 
managed by ILD. The periods of review of said programs are also indicated on that page. 
Additionally, we were engaged to audit the financia1 statements for the year mded Decrniba 31. 
2003, of ILD as an institution. 

We conductcd our audits ia accordance with auditing standards gcnmdly m p t c d  m Pau. 
govcrnmcnt auditing standards issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniied Siates of 
America, and Guidelines for Financia1 Audits Conüacted by Forcign Recipients; aocadu>gly, 
our audits included xlcctivc tests of accounting rccords and othcr audit proadurcs wc damiad 
ncccssary in the circumstances, to cover the following specific objectivcs: 

In thc ñ n u e i d  indil 10 the progrimr R . d  tbrongb USAID u d  ECES 

a) Express an opinion as to whethcr the fund accountability statcmenis and their rmmcillbon 
to cash balances of the programs financed lhrough USAID and ECES, prescnt hirly. in al1 
material nspects, the úifomc reeeived and c06u incumd (disbursrnrnts iiPde) dunng the 
pcriods audited, in confomiiiy with thc temis in the agreements and sub-agrccments, and 
government auditing standards issued by the Compmller General of the United States. 

b) Evaluatc and obtain a sufficient undmtanding of the inteml conml smrhnc of ILD, 
rclatcd to the pmgrams financcd through USAID and ECES. detumine conüul ris4 and 
identify reportable conditions. including material wcakncssts in interna1 control. 

c) Conduct tcsts to dctamine whclher LLD complied. in al1 material ~spats .  mth the tams of 
the agrcemcnts and sub-agrecment. applicable iaws and rcgulations for the pgnms 
financcd ihmugh USAiD and ECES. 



d) Evaluate the actual indirect costs nie applicable to the ptograms finanad by USAID and the 
adquacy of the distribution base and accounting refording for assigning ihese casrs. 

e) Review the cost sharing cost sehedule related to the progrants f d  by USAID. 

f) Determine whcthcr ILD has taken adcquate wrmtive rncanirrs on the roammrnd.tions 
rnade in prior audits. 

We planned ow worlr in order to fulfill these specific objectiws, our plimiing includcd 
preparation of tailored audit programs considenng the possibility of errors. imgularities and 
significant illegal xts, as requid  by statcments AlCPA AU 316 and AU 317 (SAS No 99 d 
54. respcchvely), to detctt situations or bansactions which cwld be indicative of fraud, abuse, 
as well as illegal expenscs and acts, provided they are significant and iud a maja impmci m the 
fmd accountability staiements and their reconciliation to cash balances of the propms lndicu 
thc attainrnent of their objectivs. 

I i  Ibe g e m d  purpose Rninciil audit of ILD 

We perfonned a ñnancial audit of the financial statements for general pqoses of lLD EiLca as i 
whole, in accordance with auditing siandards generally acccpted in Pau. Thc objective of the 
audit was to ex- an opinion on the financia1 statements for general purpovs of ILD. whkh 
p-t fairly, in al1 material respects, the financia1 position of ILD for the ycu aidcd Daanba 
31. 2003, the mults of its activitics and its cash flows for the year thcn ended. in acadamc 
with accounting pnnciples genmlly accepted in Pcm. 

3. SCOPE OF THE AUDIT 

iñe main proccdurts we conductcd to meet the specific objectivcs m e n t i d  abovc, ue 
indicated below: 

A. he-audit Ifeps 

Updating and review of thc opwtions conducted f a  the progmms subject u> udil, by mms 
of thc &ew of: 

Agreemcnts ngned with I W  and USAID including the farrspaiduig imcndmaits. 
Agmmcnt signed by ILD and ECES. 
Agrecmcnts and sub-agreements with ihird partis. 
Budgcts, implementation iettm. and mncn pmcedurts approvcd by USAID. ECES 
and ILD to manage the progtams. 
Circular letter hwn the Offíce of Managemcnt and Budga (OMB) A-122, Y& 
Rinciples for Non-Pmfit Organizations". 
Federal Aquisition Rcgulations (FAR), Section 31 - Cost and Racdurcs Rimipks 
f a  Contracts. 
USAD Aquisition RegulPtions ( D A R ) ,  tbat ~uppkmcnt FAR 
Obligatory Unifotm Clauscs f a  Non-U.S. Daiors, NonGov~mrrnPI (USAID 
Automated htnictions Sys tm Series 300). 
Appmdu Uniform Clauses f a  Laan and Granis Agrccmmis f a  Rogrma witb Faeigi 
Govcrnmcnts (USAD Automated htructions System, Series 200). 



10. A11 the financia1 and pgram progms rcports; catalogue of accaunts a g i n i n t i o d  
charts, desmpt iw of accounting systcms, purchpsc polities and pmcamirr5 and 
materials m i p t ,  storagc and distñbution proccdures; as neccnuy to mtisfrtoñly 
complete the work requircd. 

B. h n d  8ceoantabUity statement and its recomclliition to cmh b.luccs 

Thc audit of thc íund accountability statements and their rrconciliatim to cash b.lunxs 
of the pograna: LAG-A-00-98-00047-00 "Fommlintion of Ropcrty in Latin Amaia". fw 
the period January 1 to Apnl 30, 2003; EEM-A-00-0340005-00 "F'mgram to CRItC and 
Promote an Estado de Derecho (Ruie of Law) hat lncludes the Majority of Pow Pmpk", f a  
the period May 1 to Decembcr 31, 2003; and Agrccment ECES 9.N -F-lizatim of 
Busimss in Egypi", for the period January 1 to September 30,2003, consiacd in enunúiúig 
thc amounts budgeted by category and main heading, the income m i v e d  hwii USAID and 
ECES for thc auditcd pcriod, the costs rrpo~ed by ILD as incurred duriag chi paiob and 
the goods and technical assistance acquircd dircctly by USAiD for use by ILD. if my. 

In this rcspe~t, thc opinion on thc fund accountability statcmnt and its nxoociliatia~ to errh 
balances of thc prograrns considered what is described in the AlCPA AU 623 mtcmait 
(SAS No 62 and 77). Also, the fund accountability statm>rnt and its mmnciliation to cash 
balances showed the USAID assistance funds for each pgrarn or qxcific agrcemcnt 

The audit included evaluaiions of actions for UK cxecution of pmgnuns and the 
achievements, to determine whether the costs incurred arc acccptable. asignable and 
reasonable undcr the temis of agreetnents and identi& arcas whcrc irrrgulariha or illicit ~ c n  

could have occumd as a r m l t  of inadquate controls. Our work in this rrspaa includal br 
following: 

Selective rcview of d i t  and indúat com charged to d n5mbumd by USAíD and 
costs incumd but pcnding of reirnburvment by USAID. idcntifnng and quMh@ing 
any questioned cost. 

Review of the program's ledgcr and books and determination of whetha h e  mas 
incumd were adequately morded. It included IIK rcvicw of the mxmcilútim of the 
d i m t  casts charged to, and ~imbirsed by, USUü versus the pmpm records and 
ledgcr. 

Review of the procedum wd to control funds. including thcir c h l l i n g  to financia1 
institutiw or otha uiecutor units conttacicd. R e n m  of kmk accounn and the 
controls t h e m .  We conducied a posit~ve confinnation of balances. 

We determined whether huid advances wcrc justified with daumcntation. kluding 
rcconciliations of the funds advanced, disburxd and available. We msdc m i n  that al1 
funds m i v e d  by LLD werc appmpriately morded in its r«>unting rcoads. and that 
ihose rccords werc periodically rccmiled to inf-tion pv ided  by USAiD. 

We detamuied whetha thc incom and rcimburscmats of the pmgrinq if any, 
rcprexnting mvcr ies  of dircct and indircct costs, arc rrcorded as únomc a d i s  to 
the pmgmm' con seeounts. 





1. We obtaincd a sufñcient imdersranding of the internal control stnrturc so as to plan the 
audit and determine the nature, opportuniiy and scope of thc tests to be wnductcd. 

2. We asmscd the inhcrait risk and conaol risk and daamgrd the d i n e d  Nk 
lnherent risk is the wccptibiliiy of an ssscrtion, to a matcnif misakai stamaent. 
assuming the interna1 control stnicturc contains neithcr policia nur procedures rclated 
to the asscrtion. Control risk is the risk that a material rnistaken statement may oocur in 
an asscrtion and no1 be preventcd or timely detected by the internal control muctum of 
LD, its policia a procedures. Cornbined risk is the risk of not dcvcting a maiaúl 
rnisstatemcnt that exists in an assertion. Cornbined risk is bascd on the cfficimcy of an 
audit pmcedwe and its application by the auditor. 

3. Wc summañacd the risk evaluations for each material a d o n  in thc working ptpas 
The risk enluations have considered the following g-l categona rmdcr which e ~ c h  
asscrtion should be classified: a) existencc or occumnee; b) intcgnw c) rights and 
obligations; d) valuation or assignmm; and e) presentation and dissrmination. 

4. We asscsscd the control environmcnt, thc sufficiency of the acunmting systaa and 
control procedures. Emphasis was placed on the policies and procedurcs rclaoiig to tbc 
capacity of ILD to record, pn>cess, summarize and repor< f-id inf-tion 
consisteni with the assertions contained in each aceount in the fund pccouniability 
statement and its rrconciliation to cash balances. 

For these pirrposcs we enluated. among other aspects. the control systems for 

a) Enslrring that the chargcs to the progmms are appropriate and duly docummud; 
b) The management of rnoney, in cash and in bank accounis; 
C) The acquisition of goods and services; 
d) The managcnunt of inventotia and the inventory rccerpt function; 
e) The managcment of personnel functions, such as time control, salarics and 

bencfits; 
f) The management and disposition of asseis (such as vehicla. quipmcnt. and tools. 

as well as othcr merchandise) acqu id  eithcr by the programs or d i d y  by 
USALD; and 

g) Ensining wmpliance with the t a ~  of the agrcancnts and appliabk iaws and 
regulations that wllectivcly have a material impact on the hmd rcamability 
siatemnit. 

5. We asscssed the atablished control procedures to ensure compliance with sh.Rd a>m 
rquisitef including both the pmvision and the adrninistration of the m ü i i t i o n s .  

In MdCr to comply with the audit rquisite relavd to the understanding of the inumil m m > I  
structurc and evaluation of müol nsk Icvel, we considered the povisions of AlCPA AU 
3 19 (SAS No 55) "Interna1 Conml Considention in an Audit of Financia1 Statanmts". AU 
325 (SAS No 60. 78 and 87) Tomrnunication of Maners Relating to lntcnul Conml 
Idcntifd in m Audir. and AU 801 (SAS No 74 and 75) "Audit of ComplLac witb 
Considerations Applied to Govemmenial Entitia and Beneficiaria of Govcnimcnal 
Financia1 assistance". 



D. Compiiance with the terms 01 the q m t m e n u  md a p p ü d l e  hws i i d  regmhtiou 

In order to condwt an evaluation of compliancc with the tema of the agrecmmn ud 
applicablc laws and regulations, we designed an audit plan that considacd .maig otha 
aspects, the devclopment of the following procedum: 

1. Selective identification of the rclevant t m  of the agmmmts and applicabk iaws md 
regulations, and determination of which. if not foliowed, could have a d k t  and nnW 
effect on the fund aeeountability statemcnt and i t s  recollciliatim to cash M-. F a  
these purposes 

a) We listed al1 the uniform and specific clames of the m t a d  in the tema 
of the agrrements which, if not complied, could have a d k t  and nrataial effect m 
thc fmd accwntability statcment and its reconciliation to cash balances. 

b) We asscssed the inherent and control risks on the occirmnce of a maraui non- 
c~npl iame for each compliance requisite listed in 1 .a abovc; 

c) We determined the natm, opporiunity. and extent of the audit pFocadurrs ud stcps 
to conduct tests to determine whether thcrc are m, irregularitics and i l k g l  M 
that provide a rrasonable ccnainty of detccting cases of intentionil a non- 
intentional noneompliance with tenns of the agrrements and applicable laws and 
regulations, which could havc a direct and material cffect on the fund occounnbility 
statement and its reconciliation to cash balances. This detcmiinatim was bssd on 
the risk e~luat ion  described in 1 .b above; and 

2. We detemiid,  on a selective basis, whether payments have bcen madc in oaorduKrr 
with the t m  of the agreements and applicable laws and regulations. 

3. We &termi&, on a selective basis, wheiher the hui& have been spait f a  unaumoriacd 
purpoxs or do not agree with the applicable terms of thc agmments. 

4. We identified any costs not considered appropriate, classifying ihem and explaining why 
these costs are questioned. 

S. We detmnkd, on a setectivc M s .  w&awr any of thc asseis dircctiy scqiiiricd by 
USAiD has not been morded m the .aounting books or has not bem uscd f a  ibe 
purpases of the agremnents. 

6. Wc determid. on a selective basis. whcthcr any technical assisana d i d y  
by USAID has not been recorded in the accounting books or has not been ustd f a  the 
purposes of the agrccments. 

7. Wc determined, on a selective b i s ,  whethcr the amount of shrcd u>as uinmkrud was 
ulculatcd and morded in the accounting books as raquircd by the agrammo a 
applicabk cost principia. 

8. We determined, on a selective basis. whcther shared costs and talmical uústurc.  as 
applicable, wcrc pmvided in accordance with the tcmrs of the agramma. 



9. We detamkd, on a selective basis, whether thosc who r c a i n d  the suvices and 
benefits were eligible to receive thern. 

10. We detcrrnined. on a selective basis. whether the financia1 reportr of ILD (UKluding 
thosc on the siatcmnt of shared costs) and applicationt f a  .dvuwcs and 
reimbursements contain information supponed by its books and records. 

E. Indirect msts rate 

We detmined the real indirect cosu rate for the period subject to audit. Our audit plan 
consided tcsts to determine wheiher: 

1. The assignmmt base includes only arcas or expcnscs authorircd by the agrrcmaits and 
applicable cost principies. 

2. Thc grouping of accumulated indirect cosu includcs only costs auihonacd by the 
agrmnents and applicable cost pñnciples. 

3. The indimt costs rate obtained by dividing the total indirect c o a  by thc base. has b e n  
calculated properly. 

4. Thc costs includcd in the calculation tic with the total costs shown in thc audircd 
financial statcmmts for general purposcs of ILD. takcn as a whole. 

The results of the audit of the indirect costs rate are shoun on a specific indirect msis 
calculation schedule, which contains: 

a) A detail of the costs included in each indkct costs grouping 
b) The distribution base. 
C) The results of the calculation of thc indirect costs rate. Thc m t s  on the scheduk be with 

the total costs shown in the financial statemcnts for genml purposcs of KD. 

F. Cost sbaring schedule 

We rcwewcd the sharcd cwts rhcduk ofrgcwnts LAG-Ad0-98-7-00 iad EEM-A- 
00-03M)005-00 signcd with USAID, to d*aiiánc whether the shared amo u m m i  
were provided and recorded in the accour~ting bodo by ILD in accordancc mth the tanrs of 
the agreement. 

G. FoUow-np o i  prior andits' rcrommc&tbrr 

We renewcd the status of the actions takcn m fíndings and rrcommendrhons includcd in the 
previous year's audit repoií of h e  USAID .id ECES prognuns. 

We havc cxamúied the p a a l  purpow finiocial statementr of ILD cilrai as a whok. Thc 
audit was wnducted in accordance with auditing standards generally .cccpted in P m  



Thc objcctivc of the audit was to exprcss an opinion as to whahcr the gavnl pnpos 
financia1 statements prrsnit fairly, in al1 material rrspects, the fuiancial positim of ILD as of 
December 31,2003, the mults of its actinties and its cash flom for the ycar thm ended. in 
accordance with accounting principies generally acccpted in P m .  

1. Otber andit responsibllitia 

1. We held audit initiation and completion meeting5 with ILD. 

2. We established quality control procedures to ensure that sufficient wmpevnt evidare 
was obtained through the inspection, observation, intmicws, and cmfinnations to hivc 
available a -nabie basis to issue an opinion on the financia1 statements under audit. 
Said procedures ensure that: 

a) the audit rrport and the supporting docummts to the working papm that back it uc 
reviewed by an auditor of partna levcl, who was not involved in the audit. 

b) al1 the quantitia and monetary amounts involving calculations havc kai ddy  
verified and refmced;  and 

c) al1 the statements of facts, figures, conclusions and monetary amounts are r e f d  
in the working papen. 

3. We obtained a lener of representation from the client, as per SAS No. 85 (AU333) of 
AICPA, signed by the beneficiary management. 

4. RESULTS OF THE AUDIT 

a) Fund aeeountabllity statements of USAID and ECES progrupr 

In our opinion, the fund accountability sta(rmrnt prcsents fmirly. in d i  mataid rrspccn. 
the program's incwK and the toas incumd aod ~ imbuned  for ik p d  Jsnuuy l. 
2003 lo Apil30,2003, in accordDnrr with tbe iums of the agrremnt and ui confomity 
with the accounting practices described m note 2 of the rrspstivc rqnní. 

EEM-A- "Progrim to Crate u d  Promote u -do de Dcrcck 
(Ftnle of Law) that Includcs tbe Majority of Poor Peopk" 

Ln our opinion, the fimd accountability statemcat presents fairly. in al1 m a t d  rrspeag 
the pmgram's incomc and the costs incumd and reimburvd for the period May 1, 2003 
to December 3 1,2003, in accwdance with the t m  of the agmment and in caifonnity 
with the leeounting pfdctices dcscribed in note 2 of the rrspstivc repari. 



Cooperitive agreememt ECES S/N "Formillntlom of B d w n  ¡m E&yptW 

in our opinion. the fund accountabiliiy stat-t prcscnts fairly. ia d l  matuiai rrspects. 
the progmn's inwme and the costs incurred and reimbuntd for the period Jan- l .  
2003 to Septcmber 30. 2003. in accordancc with the uniis of the agrecmmt d in 
conformity with the accounting practices dcscribed in note 2 of the rcspcchve rcpori. 

b) lnternai control structure 

Our audit plan for the fund accountabiliiy statements and thetr reconctiiahon to cash 
balances of the programs LAG-AM)-9840047-00 "Formalizahon of Ropmy m h h n  
America". for h e  period January 1 to Apnl 30,2003, EEM-A40-03-00005-00 "Rogrnm 
to Create and Romote an Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) that lncludcs the Maj~tIt). of 
Poor People", for the period May 1 to December 31, 2003. and Agrecment ECES SS 
"Formalizahon of Busuiess in Egypt", for the period January I to Septanber 30.2003: as 
well as our audit of the financial s ta temts  of ILD for the ycar mded Dcoembcr 31, 
2003. mcluded the study and eniuahon of the mtanal control systcm of ILD a> tht 
extent we deemed neccssary to detemune the nature. opportuntty and cxmt  of the 
indispensable audit procedum to enable us to express an opinion on its f inurul  
statements 

The enluation of the interna1 control stnicturc included the followng cycles: 

Aecounting and financial cycle 
Treasury cycle 
Expensescyclc 
Payrolls cycle 
Fixed assets cycle 
General computer controls 

The results of the enluation am indicated in Appendix 1 - Rccommcndahais IO the 
Executive Direcbon of ILD. 

It should be indicated that the mults of our selective tesis did mi diselose any n i m a s  

relating to the intemal control structure or its opaation that could be oaWdaad 8 

material weabiess. 

c) Compünnce witb tbe t e r m  of tb t  igreemcib  applicabk hws  ami rcg&aíom 

in d e r  to determine that ILD complied in al1 material rrspects, with h e  tcrms of the 
agrccments, applicable laws and regulations. we conducted selective audtt tests to be 
coíain that ILD had complied with s a m ,  obtaining the results indiaied below, t h t  
aííect the Cooperative Agrecment LAG-A-00-9840047-00. relating to the Project 
"Formalization of Property in Latin America", which mded on April30.2003. 

Findings: 

Them was no compliu~x with the date cstablished in Standad Rowiom. iiao 3 5  
(d) "Termination and Suspension" of the agrrcment, which smtcs h e  oblig.tiai io 
refund to USAID the unused funds. which m t e d  to USS240.540, ia thc 30 
calendar days afia  expiry of the agrecment. 'Ihe funds wem reimbursd t h u @  rwo 



t0nk draí?s. the fint of USS232.164 on January 13. 2004 and the second f a  the 
balance of USS8.376 on February 13,2004. 

There was no compliance with the date established in appmdix 3.23 (d) ^Ropary 
and Use of Fixed Asscts" of the agrrrmcnt, which a t e s  the obligatia, to pnwidc U, 
USAID a l i s  of the fixed assets acquid  for the amormhng to USS34.990. 
within the 30 calendar days aAcr expiry of the agreemenr Thc Iisi  was unt  m 
January 23,2004. 

Indirert costs rate 

íhe indirect costs schedule prcpared by ILD for the period Januiuy 1,2003 to Decanba 
31. 2003. indicatcs a 36% rate. Said schedule has bccn wbject to the ~ p p l i a o m  ofaudit 
pmcedum applied to the examination of financial statemcnts for general pnpara. the 
results of which havc been satisfactory, taking the financia1 natemcnts as a ahole. 

The review of thc cost sharing schedule of the program LAG-A-00-9&00047-00 
conducted in accordance with audihng standnrds atablishcd by the Arnerican insijaite of 
Ceriified Public Accountants, the scope of which is m limited ihan an euunuutiai in 
accotdancc with said norms the objective of which is to exprcss an opiniai. did not 
disclose any material situations related to sharcd costs conmbutions not providad a 
rccorded in the accounting bmks in accordance with thc terms of the agrremnL 

FoUow-up oo pmious audit's recommeadatioar 

We have evaluated the prcsent siiuation of the recornmendations hwn the prcuioin audit. 
verifymg the actions takm thcrron. Thc d t  of said evaluatim. w k h  is shopm m 
Section Vil hereof. disclosed sornc recommendations pending of implemnitatim. 

Financial statements of Institpto Libertad y Democtncu 

Our opinion on the audit of the gmeral purposc fmuiciai stotancnts .s of 31. 
2003ofILDinsccordancewiththcicfanitiagbPsisdacribcdinthcnovstothc 
financial statemcnts, contains an unqualified @ion on the financial positim of ILD as 
of Dccembcr 31, 2003. and the muhs of its aciintia and cash flows f a  the ycir mai 
ended. 

As parí of our policy in the firm, this repori has been submined to and conmicnted with ihe 
adminisirahon of ILD, for its rcnew and conunenis. The administratim has indicated 10 ha= 
1-4 UY and be in a p m e n t  wilh its contmts. 

This rcport is intended for the inf-tion of USAiü and K.D. Howcvcr. upon relase by USAID. thE 
report is a maiier of public record and its distnbution is not limited. 



We would like to tha& the coopnation of ILD cxecutivcs and pmonnel who nipportbd us in thc awrrs 
of our work, and would like to take advantage of ihis oppomuiity to cxprcss to you out gtaM 
considmtion. 

CPC ~ & % a t \ b n ~ o .  121 59 



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAlD No LACA-98oooQ7-00 'FORMAL1UTION OP 
PROPERTY M WTIN AMERICA" 

FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STAMENT AND ITS RECONCILIATION TO CASH BAUYCE 
FOR TEE PERiOD FROM JANUARY 1,2003 TO APRiL 30,2003 

lndependmt auditors' opinion 

Fund accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance 

Notes to the fund accountability statement and its rcconciliahon to cash balance 

USS = United States Dollar 



MDEPENDMT AUDITORS' OPMlON 

Management Council 
Instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San isidro 

We have auditcd the fund accountability statcmnt and its reconciliation to cash b a k  of tk 
"Fonnalization of Property in Latin America". for thc period from Janwry 1. 2003 to April 30. 2003, 
fuianced by the Unitcd Statcs Agnicy for lntcmational Devclopmmt (USAID) tbrough coopcntiu 
agreement N" LAG-A40-98-00047-00 "Fotmalization of Roperiy in Lith Amaica". and mpníged by 
Instituto Libmad y Democracia (ILD). The hmd accountability statcment and its mxmcitiation to cash 
balance is the responsibility of the ILD Adnunisüation. Our rcsponsibility is to exprrss an opinion oa 
the iimd accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance based on our audit 

Save for what is m e n t i d  in the next paragraph, we conducted our audit of the hmd -0bility 
statement and its ~conciliation to cash balance in accordance with U.S. Govenuneru Audi~Uig S<andordr 
isswd by the Comptroller Gmaal of the United States. Thosc standards q u m  that we plan ami 
perform the audit to obtain rrasonable assurance about whether the fund aeeountability shtcmcnt d in 
reconciliation to cash balance are k c  of material misstatements. An audit includcs cxanuning. on a tesi 
basis, evidcnec nipporting the amounts and disclosurcs in the fund accountability siaiemcnt and its 
recweiliation to cash balance. An audit also includcs asscssing the rcouniing priacipks uscd md 
significant estimates made by managemcnt, as well as e~luat ing  the overall financiai statamnt 
presentation. We believe that OUT audit provides a reasonable basis for OUT opinion. 

We have no quality control review pro- by any unaffiliaicd extcmal organizatias as q u i d  by 
Chapter 3. paragraph 3.33 of U.S. Go-eru Avdiring Smndards , s h  a r b  pqgam is m o f f c d  by 
any professiod organization in Pau. We bclieve ik effeets of this deviahai 6mm ihe U.S Gmemmmi 
Airdi~ing Stondnnis are not material because our o ñ i e  participara in the arorld-m& gurliáy coatrol 
program of Deloine Touche Tohmatsu and, un&r said pmgram, every thrcc yan it is subjcct toa qinlity 
control review conducted by pamm and managers of othcr member Iím of Deloitte Touche T h t s u .  

As desaibed in Note 2, thc hmd accountability statemcnt and its rreonciliation to cash balance, was 
prepared on the basis of cash, which is an accounting system d i f f m t  hom that based on aaxnmting 
pnnciples generally accepted in Peru. 



in our opinion, the fimd accwntability sbtmwnt and its rrconciliation to ash bolsnce r e f d  to h v c  
prrsents fairly, in al1 material rcspccts, program rcvmucs, costs incmd,  and m a s h  brtirrc 
of the p r o v  "Fomalization of Property in Latin America", f i d  thmugh USAID. f a  the paMd 
from Janusuyl, 2003 to April30.2003, in accordance with the tmm ofcoopaativc 8gfumcnr NO LAG- 
A40-984004740 and in conformity wiih the basis of acanmting dacribed in míc 2 to rhc hmd 
accountability statement and its reconeiliation to w h  balance. 

This report is intcnded for thc information of ILD and USAID. Howcver. upon release by USAID. ths 
npott is a maticr of public record and its distribution is not limited. 



MSITWTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAID No WGA-00-9800047-00 "FORMALUATION 01: 
PROPERW IN LATIN AMERICA" 

FUND ACCOUNTABIUTY STATEMENT AND ITS RECONClLIATION TO CASH BALAi'YCE 
FOR TBE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1,2003 TO APRIL M, 2003 

Not 
m - Acliul I n c l i b k  doemmnted 

USS USS USS USS 

MCOME 
Ekgiming balance 
Funds m i v e d  

Totif 

COSTS MCURRED 
Direct costs 

Pemnnel 
Social bcnefits 
Traveling expenses 
Audiis 
Odm dimt costs 

ToW 

Adminisüative costs 287,716 154,139 
ILD Conference 149,229 40.01 8 

ToW coa& Uciimd 83 1,694 591,154 - - 
AVAlLABLE FUNDS d 

lñc accompanying notes are an integral pari of the fund acmtability siataiiait and iis  rrcwiliuion 
to cash balance. 



MSllTüTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACiA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAID NO LAGA40-980M)47-00 YPORMALIU1lON OF 
PROPERTY IN LATIN AMERICA" 

NOTES TO FUND ACCOUNTABILITY mATüMENi AND ITS RECONCiLiA~ON TO CASE 
BALANCE FOR THE PERiOD FROM JANUARY 1,2003 TO APRIL M, 2003 

1. DESCRiPTION OF THE COOPERATIVE ACREEMENT 

On August 18, 1998, the Instituto Libertad y Democracia (iLD) and the U n i d  Sinies Agcncy 
for intemational Developmcnt ( U S O )  signed the eooperative ngramcai N' LAGA-OO-98- 
0004740, whereby USAID undertook to contribute the amount of U!3W.000,000 to aD 
in focusing its efforts on f-lizing the assets bclonging to the poom cl- m a Ley wubk 
to d u c e  their marginal condition in Latin American developing countrics. Also. in virñr of the 
agrrcment the share cost mtribution of ILD dwing the length of the prognun was ennMirhcd in 
USf2,000,000. During the development of the program ILD executai the followmg mivities: 

intemational confercnce oriented to the d e  of leadmhip in promoting the puñcipatkm of 
the community. 

Evaluations of informal property and business conditions in one a two counma in the 
hemisphere. 

Rcsearchprog inmforúnpoWigthcrrsu l t sdtherrg iav lu idener-reg ian l~  
pmgrams, in which ILD and 0 t h  institutions are involved. 

Roviding of post-confcrence follow up to those countria in the hemisphcrc t h t  m y  requirc 
technical assistanec, which could rrsult in additional evaluations &a thc design of m 
action program to fnmaiize the i n f d  actor in a m i v e  or mtion-widc scalc. 

The agreement did not consida the application of indircct costs fales. cxpccting timt iñul ntcs 
could bc establishcd. Until that momcnt, al1 imputable costs wem umsidcnd as dirst costs. 
limits being atablished for administmtive costs and social h f i t s .  

Additional financing for thc program was approvcd by USAD via urrndmnts N' 2 of Augw 
29, 2000 and No 4 of September 20, 2002, amounting to USS250.000 and USSI.200.000. 
respectively, the total amount of the budget bcing ntablished in USS7.450.000. 



The most significant accounting policin uscd in thc prcparation and prrsaitation of thc iünd 
accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance, are thc following: 

The program bansactions are record4 in nuevos sola in the a c w u n ~ g  d. 
Transactions conductcd in U.S. dollus or in othcr c u n u ~ ~ i a  are tnnslrccd into n- soks 
at the exchange nte  in force as of the date of each üansaction. 

b) Acconnting buis of modified c u b  

The fimd accountabiliiy statement and its reconciliation to cash balance was prpírrd m thc 
basis of cash rcceived and disbursed. Also. al1 expenses msde si year's aid are bescd on a 
pre-established budgct. 

The funds reccived are recognizcd as income on thc &u thq  are deponted in a tank 
account in thc name of h e  pmgram. 

d) Recognition of costs 

The costs incurred in the program are recognizcd when disbursed. 

e) Translatioa into U.S. dollars. 

llte income and costs rccordcd in nuevos soles. w m  tr~nslatc d into U.S. QlLn al tIK 
exchange nita of the date of origin, for thc &rposes of the prrvntation of the iünd 
accountability s ta temt  and iis reconciliation to cash balance. 

The cxchangc ntcs used in thc penod January 1,2003 to Apll30,2003,to auislaie tulances in 
nuevos soles into U.S. dollars, vaned from S.3.509 to S.3.463, rrspcetivcly. pcr USS 1 .OO. 



As of Apil 30, 2003. date of complehon of the agrrcmcnt, the availabk balance showa in ü~ 
fund accountability statcmrnt and its moneiliation to w h  balance mmpnses: 

Balance in bank current awunt  in foreign currency 
Plus: 
A w n t s  receivable from iLü 
Disbursements to be accounted for 
ToW funds pnding rchnd to USAID 

These hinds w m  rcfimded to USAID through two bank drafk the firn of USS232.164 on 
January 13.2004, and the second for the balance of USJ8.376 cm Fcbruary 13.2004. 



INSTiTüTO UBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAID No EEM-A-00-0- 'PROGRAM TO CREATE 
AND PROMOTE A W A D O  DE DERECHO (RULE OP LAW) WAlCli MCLUDES TBE 
MAJORITY OF POOR PEOPLE" 

FUND ACCOUNTABILITY SATEMENT AND ITS RECONCILiATiON TO CASH BALANCE 
FOR THE PERlOD FROM MAY 1,2003 TO DECEMBER 31,2003 

Independent auditors' opinion 

Flmd accountability statement and iis reconciliation to cash balance 

Notes to the íimd accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance 

USS = United States Dollar 



WDEPENDENT AUDITORS' OPlNION 

Managcmcnt Council 
instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

We have audited the fund aecountability statement and its rcconciliation to carh balance of the "Rognm 
to Crcatc and Romote a Estado de Dmcho (Rule of Law) that includes the Majaity of P o a  Poopk". for 
thc period from May 1. 2003 to Dccember 31, 2003. finanad by the Uniicd Sutes Agary f a  
inkmational Development (USAID) through cmpaatiw agrremnt No EEM-A-W-03-00005-00 
"Propm to Crcate and Romotc a Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) that lncluda the Majaity of Pm 
Pwplc", and managed by instituto Libertad y Democracia (ILD). The fund aarwmubility snmncnt aad 
its raeonciliation to cash balance is the mponsibility of the ILD Adminimation. Our rcspaiwbility is to 
cxprcss m opinion on the hind accountability statemmt and its reconciliation to cpsh balance brsd on 
our audit. 

Savc for what is rnentioned in thc ncxt parapph. wc conducted our audit of thc rund acwuniabiliry 
siatcment and its mnciliation to cash balance in accordance wth U.S. Governmen~ Avdiring Siondardt 
issued by the Comptroller Gmcral of thc United Siates. 'Ihose sanduds rcqutrc that we plan aad 
pcrform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w h c k  thc fund aawntability stat-t ud its 
reconciliation io cash balance are free of material misstatemcnts. An audit includcs A g .  on a tesi 
b i s ,  endencc arpporting the hcun t s  and dixlo- in the hmd acwunhbility sntanmt and i e  
reconciliation to cash balance. An audit also includes assasing chc .ccounting pmeipks uscd aad 
significant estimates made by managemmt, as well as evaluating thc o m l l  financia1 drtarrnt  
prrscntation. Wc bclieve that our audit provides a rrasonablc basis for our opinion. 

We havc no quality control rcncw pmgram by any unaffiliotcd utcrml as rrqumd by 
Chapter 3. paragrsph 3.33 of U.S. Governmenr Audiruig 9ondordr . since a r h  pognm is not offacd by 
any professional wganization in Pem. We bcliew the cffects of this dmrtion from the US GovmiMI 
Audiring S~andordr are not material because our ofíicc participates in thc dd-aride q d i t y  amtrd 
program of Deloine Touchc Tohmatsu and, undcr said pm- every t h m  yan it is subjat io a qurlity 
conbol review conducted by parbiers and managers of 0 t h  mcmbcr fims of Deloine Twchc TohirPcnr 

As dtscribed in Note 2. the fund accountabiliiy statcmcnt and its reconciliation to cash balance. was 
pcparrd on thc basis of cash, which is an accountmg system d i f f m t  'om ha<  b a d  on acraating 
pnncipla generally accepted in P m .  

- 22 - 
Audit .Tax.Consulting.Financial Advisory. 



in our opinion, thc fund ~ccountabiliiy statement and its ~econciliation to cPsh balance r c f d  to abore 
presents fairly. in al1 material respects. program rcvenucg mts i m u d  and variations in ash brtuice 
of h e  "Program to Create and Promote a Estado de h h o  (Rulc of Law) that lncludes the Majonry of 
Poor People", financed through USAID, for the period 'om Mayl, 2003 to Davmba 31. 2003. Ui 
accordance with the tcms of coopcrative agrrmKnt No EEM-A40-03400OS-OO and Ui c a ~ f d r y  with 
the basis of accounting dcscribed in note 2 to the fund accountabiliiy statcment and its rsonciliatia~ to 
cash balance. 

This repon is intcnded for thc i n f m t i o n  of ILD and USAID. Howcva, upon rckDse by USAID. t h s  
report is a matter of public record and its dismburion is not limited. 

md09=- CPC Registra ' n No. 12 159 

May 7,2004 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAiD No EEM-Ad0-OM000100 "PROGRAM TO CREATE 
AND PROMOTE A ESI'ADO DE DERECHO (RLLE O F  LAW) THAT MCLUDES THE 
MAJORlTY O F  POOR PEOPLE" 

FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT AND ITS RECONCILIATION TO CASH BALkNCE 
FOR THE PERlOD FROM MAY 1,2003 TO DECEMBER 31.2003 

M t i o u a b k  cose 
Not 

Actual - lncüribk docimnted plq-' 
USS USS USS USS 

INCOME 
Beginning balance 
Appmved budget 5.1 22,000 1,629,370 

Total 5,122,000 1.629.370 - 5 

COSTS MCURRED 
Direct costs 

Personnel 
Social benefits 
Sub-Contracts 
Traveling expenses 
Equipment 
Oiher direct c o a  

Total 

lndirect costs 1,198,000 431.159 

Total cmts incumd 5,l22,OOO 1.628.901 - 
AVAILABLE WNDS 469 

Quationablc castí 

The accmpanying notes are an integral p of the fund accountability staianent .nd its raonciliation 
to cash balance. 



INSlTlTTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT USAID No EüM-A00-OM0005-00 'PROCRAM TO CREATE 
AND PROMOTE A ESTADO DE DERECHO (RüLE M LAW) THAT MCLUDES TBE 
MAJORITY OF POOR PEOPLE" 

NOTES TO FUND ACCOUNTABUIIY STATEMEW AND ITS RECONCILLATION M CASE 
BALANCE FOR THE PERIOD FROM MAY 1,2003 TO DECEMBER 31,2003 

1. DESCRiPTlON OF THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMEhT 

On Scptember 24,2003, the instituto Libenad y Dcmoeracia (nD) and the United Sta- Asaiey 
for intcmatio~l Development WSAID) signed the cooperative agreemcnt EEM- A-OO-03- 
00005-00 fw the execution of the "RDgnm to Create and RMnotc a Estado de Daaho (Ruk of 
Law) that includes the Majoriiy of Poor Pbople". nK purpose of this progr~m is to a- mt 
following activities: a) esiablish training centm, b) ensure p j s t s  in poerss and funm 
projects, c) create awarcncss and pmrnote the activities of the institution. d) tnin p a s o m ~ l  for 
thc client country, e) improve products and services, and f) expand thc vrvice capaaty. 

The total program budget amounts to USS45.180.000. of which USS25.379.000 will be íüuncui 
with USAJD hinds, USS5,940,300 through shared costs, and USS13,860.700 through third pariy 
resotures.. 

The agreement became effective on May 1.2003 and is due to expire on April30.2008. thnmg 
the agmment's period of validity, USAID shall disbursc to the program USS5.122.000 in dr 
fmt ycar, USS6.090.000 in the sccond year. USS5,050.000 in thc M y-. USSS.049.000 in tbc 
fourth year and USW.068.000 in the fitlh year. Under the agrarnent, USAID is requid io 
disbursc up to USS6.000.000 for p g r a m  expenxs during the period May 1. 2003 to April 30, 
2004, in tum, during this pericd lLD is to conduct the following activities: 

Establish baining centm: 

- Develop work plans in line with the m sewice modcl to be p v i d c d  by iLD. 
- Developed general or customizcd baining courxs. 
- Prepare training manuals and materiais which should Utclude siudy tiza md othcr 

tcaching tools. 
- ikvelop and establish managerial projccts, evaluation and rnonitoñng critcna. 
- Develop trainers' pmfile. 
- Establish training facilities in Lima and, ifrcquired, in the host unmhies. 

- lnihate -h uid develop p h  to assist the goycmmcnts inmcmd m dr sMce, m 
ordcr to initiate or continue refom pogranrs. - Hold convmations with client govemments and financing soirrrcs to aiam mt 
coniracting of thc pjects .  

- Assist the Mexico and Honduras (and eventually Philippims) govemmnts in conductuig 
their projccts in the Design of Reforms stage. 



- AAcr completion of the Design of Refonns stage in the Egypt project. assin the Egypban 
government in conducting the Refom pro- to the impl-tation stage. 

Create awarencss and promote the achvities of tht inshtution 

Define policia with mitetia to establish priorities for counüies. 
Consuit with counby leaden. compile availabie information and d u c t  a ihorough 
rescarch, on the problems proper to the host counby so that its objechws and 
expectations may be attaincd and met. 
Prepare presentations according to each government's situation, and explain the h f i n  
and advantages of ILD pmgrams. 
Prepare the material to be handed before and aítcr the lecnires. mtings.  wo&hops. 
etc.; including video confercnces and lntcrnei. 

Train pmomel for the client country. 

- Tnin thc new and prrsent ILD bainers to become familiar with the near model of savice 
to be p m v i w  and updatcd with the mw courscs. pmgrams u>d mnuñal. 

- Recniit and train the new staff in the counüies where the pmgrams are being applicd. 
- Tnin legislators in the present or potenhal ILD client counüies. 
- Train the political advison designated by the client government. 
- Train technical teams to devclop the projecu. 

lmpmve products and xnices  

- Identi@ the specific arcas to be investigatcd in rcsponx to program rcquisites and 
opportunities, and the institution's expectalions for fuiure work. 

- Provide the ILD staff with researchers and consultants, as well as sufíicient mformrtion 
rrsourccs to rcspond to specific rcqukments and significan1 mattas. 

Expand the s h c e  capacity 

- Define products and xrvices in accordance with the main business stnitegy. 
- Define the managaial organizarion and struciurc iadcr the nm savice model 
- Conduct the recniihncrit proccss based on dcmand and fund availability. 

Shaml cosis have bcen established in USS627.000 for ihe second ycar. USS1.391.700 f a  the 
third year, USSI ,73 1,000 for the fourth year. and USS 2,190,600 for the fifth yar. Aecording to 
the agreement, no s h a d  cnsis are applied for the Arst year. 

The agrcement considers the application of indirect eosu nta. for which purposc h e  following 
rates havc bcen established: 31% for the first ytar, 24% for the second year, 20% f a  the third 
ycar, and 18% for the fourih and fifth years. rcspectivtly. 



The rnost significant accounting policies used in the preparation and prrscntation of the fund 
accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance. are h e  following: 

lhe proprn üansactions are morded in nuevos sola in chc accounnng rsords. 
Transactions conducted in U.S. dollars or in other cumncia m aanslaied m10 n- soks 
at the exchange rate in force as of the date of each wnsaction. 

b) Accouoting basis of modified casb 

The fund accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance was prcparrd on thc 
basis of cash received and disburscd. Also. al1 expenses made at ycar's end are bísed on a 
prccstablished budget. 

The h d s  reccived are mognized as income on ihe date thcy are dcpositcd in a bnk 
account in the name of the program. 

d) Recognition ofcosts 

The costs incurred in the prograrn are recognizcd when disbwxd 

e) Translation into U.S. doiiars. 

The income and costs morded in nuevos soles, w m  e~nslatcd inio U.S. dollus ai rbe 
exchange rates of the date of origin. for ihc purpom of ihe presentation o í  thc hnd 
accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance. 

The exchange ra ta  used in the pcriod May 1,2003 to Darmber 31,2003, io mandate hlnFcs 
in nuevos soles into U.S. dollars, varicd from S.3.463 to S.3.464, rcspcctively. pa USS1.00. 



4. PROJECT BUDGET 

The total cost budgeted for the project may be broken down as follows: 

The budget established for the fint year comprises the period May 1,2003 to Apnl30.2004. As 
of Decernber 3 1, 2003, USS1,628,90I have been enecuted (Note 5) .  corresponding to 3 1 .S% of 
the budget authonzed for the first year. 

5. BUDCETARY EXECUTION 

As of December 3 1,2003, the amounts executed and budgeted are as follows: 

Approvcd 
Execmicd Not disbined m 

USS USS L'SS 

D i m t  mts 
Personnel and social benefits 
SuKontracts 
Traveling expenses 
Equipment 
Other direct costs 

Total 

I a d i m t  mis 

Genernl total (Note 3) 



As o f  December 31. 2003, h e  available balance s h o m  in the fund accouniability statenn~i ami 
its reconciliation to cash balance comprises: 

Balance in bank current account in foreign cumncy 
Plus ( les ) :  
Other accounts receivable from third parties 
Disbursements to be accounted for 
Accounis payable to ILD 
Pending iransfer lo  lndirect Costs 
Total 



MSTITWO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

CONVENIO COOPERATIVO ECES SIN 'FORMALIZATION OF BUSlNESS EN EGYI'T" 

FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT AND ITS RECOlVClLIATION TO CASH BAUYCE 
FOR THE PERlOD FROM JANUARY 1,2003 TO SEPTEMBER 30,2003 

CONTENTS 

lndependent auditon' opinion 

Fund accountability statement and i i s  reconciliation to cash balance 

Notes to the huid accountability statemeni and its reconciliation to cash balance 

USS = United States Dollar 



MDEPENDENT AUDITORS' OPMION. 

Management Council 
instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

We have audited the fund accountability statement and its monciliation to cash balance of thc pmgnm 
"Fonnalization of Business in Egypt". for the period from January 1, 2003 to Scpvmba 30. 2003, 
financcd by The Egyptian Center for Economic Studics (ECES) lhrwgh foopaatirr agrccmnt SW 
"Forrnalization of Business in Egypt" and cooperative agrecment No 263-A-00-93-00104-00 entered into 
by ECES and the United States Agency for intcrnational Development (LISAID), and rwanaged by 
Instituto Libertad y Democracia (ILD). Thc huid accountability statement and its reu>ncil¡ation to cash 
balance is the responsibility of the ILD Adminisiration. Our responsibility is to ex- an opinion on 
the fund accountability statement and its reconciliahon to cash balance b a d  on our audit. 

Save for what is mentioned in the next paragraph we conducted our audit of the fund acaunubility 
statement and its reconciliation to cash balance in accordancc with U.S. Governrnenr Audihg EandonLc 
issued by the Comptroller General o i  the United States. Thov standards rcquirr that ur plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fund accountability stat-t and its 
reconciliation to cash balance are free of material rnisstatemcnts. An audit includes examining. on a test 
basis. eridcnce supporting the amounts and dirlosures in the fund acunmtability seument and 16 
reconciliation to w h  balance. An audit also includes -ing ihe aeeounting principia used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the ovcrall financia1 staíemmt 
preseniation. We believe that our audit provides a rrasonable basis for our opinion. 

We have no quality control rcview program by any unafiliated extcmal organizatia as nquirad by 
Chapter 3, paragraph 3.33 of U.S. Governrnenr Auditing Slnndordr . sinu such prognm IS not ofiered by 
any profcssional organizaíion in Peru. We bclieve the cffccts of this deriation from the U.S íhemmaü 
Audiring Standordr are not material because our ofíice pticipatcs in the wodd-andc quality amml 
program of Deloine Touche Tohmatsu and, under said pro- evny three ycan 11 is subjoct toa quality 
control review wnducted by partnm and managm of other mcrnber fim of Deloitte Touche Tohntatsu. 

As descnbed in Note 2, the fund accountability statement and its rrconciliahon to cash balance, uas 
prepared on the basis of cash, which 1s an accounting systm different from that b a d  on lccounung 
pnnciples g-lly accepted in Peni 



In our opinion, the fund accountability statemcnt and its nconciliation to cash balance rcfenui to abow 
presents fairly, in al1 material rcspects, program rcvenues. mis incurred. and varianotu in cash bolancc 
of the program "Formalization of Business in Egypt". financed ihrough ECES, for chc pcnod from 
January 1,2003 to September 30,2003, in accordance wiih the t m  of cooperanve agrecmcnt 9% ud 
in confonnity with the bgsis of ace~mting described in note 2 to chc fund acmuntability statmrnt md its 
reconciliation to cash balance. 

This report is intended for the inf-tion of ILD, ECES and USAID. However, upon release by ECES 
or USAID. ihis rcport 1s a maner of public record and its disüibution is not limited. 

q (p-) 
Eduardo Gris Pc onch 



MSTiTUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATWE AGREEMENT ECES S/N "FORMALIZATION OF BUSMESS M EGYPT" 

FUND ACCOUNTABLLlTY STATEMENT AND ITS RECONCILlATiON TO CASH BALAh'CE 
FOR THE PERlOD FROM JANUARY 1.2003 TO SEPTEMBER 30,2003 

LNCOME 
Beginning balance 
Funds received 

Total 

COSTS INCURRED 
Direct costs 

Penonnel 90,033 1 15.897 
Social benefits 29,393 42.9 17 
Traveling expenses 127,958 9,407 
Audits 7,280 4.08 1 
Other direct costs (5.552) 13,632 

Total 249,l 12 185,934 

lndirect costs 12,934 75,477 

Toial costs incurred 262,046 261.41 1 - 4 

The accompanying notes are an intepl  part of the fund accountability stat-t and its rsoncilliion 
to cash balance. 



I N m O  LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT ECES S/N "FORMALIZATION OF BUSINESS M EGYPI" 

NOTES TO FCTND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT AND AND RECONClWATION TO CASA 
BALANCE FOR THE PERiOD FROM JANUARY 1,2003 TO SEPTEMBER M, L003 

3. DESCRlPTlON OF THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

An agreement for USS1.061.376 was signed with ECES on May l. 2002 for the 'Fomplinbon 
of Business in Egypt". í h e  purposc of this agrecment was to idcntify rrnnncrs U, reduce 
adminishativc costs and increase benefits, so that Egyptian business enter into and rrnnin Ui the 
legal system, increasing the advantages of poor people to participate in the eunomy's kg i l  
f r a m e w d  Tñis agreement expired on April30.2003. 

On July 30,2003 an amendment to the agamcn t  was signcd, whercby the m ' s  paiod of 
validity was extended Apnl 30. 2003 to Septcmber 30. 2003, and the time-tabk f a  the 
pyncnts  ECES had to make to ILD was modified. 

Under this agmrneni. ILD undcriook the following: 

Conduct the necessary research to complete tk prograrn. 
Organize and exccute the daily operations as per the work plan established. 
Submit to ECES the delivcrables agretd, for its review and comments. 
Establish a continuous prrxnce in Caim until completion of thc pmgmm 
Provide wald  recognition to the rcsearch skillf inicllcetuaI popaty rights, ib i l iba  d 
undmtanding of the pmgram. 
Complete the pmgram in the time a@, to the satisfaction of ECES 

The most significant accounting policies used in the prcparntion and presentarion of the fund 
accountability statement and its monciliation to cash balance, are the following: 

The program iransactions are recorded in nuevos s o l a  in the accounhng mordr 
Transactions conducted in U.S. dollars or in other cumnc ia  are translaled into nuevos s o l a  
at the exchange rate in forec as of the date of each uansaction. 

The hmd accountability statement and its reconciliation to cash balance was prrpucd on the 
basis of cash meived and disbursed. Also, al1 expmses made ai year's ad are M on i 
prcatablished budget. 



C) Recognition of income 

The funds received are rrcognizcd as i w m e  on the date they arc dcposited in a bank 
account in the namc of the pmgram. 

d) Recognition of costs 

The costs i n c d  in the pmgram are rrcognizcd whcn disburscd. 

e) Translation into U.S. dollars. 

The income and costs recorded in nuevos soles. w m  translated into U.S. dollars at the 
exchange rates of the date of origin, for the purposcs of the prescntation of h e  hmd 
accountability statemcnt and its reconciliation to cash balance. 

3. E X C M G E  RATE 

The exchange rates used in the period January 1. 2003 to Septcmbcr 30. 2003, to m i a t e  
balances in nuevos soles into U.S. dollars. varicd from S1.3.509 to S1.3.483, respecti~ly. pa 
USS1 .OO. 

4. BUDGETARY EXECUTION 

The amounts budgeted and executed as of Scptmber 30.2003, completion date of the m 
are as follows: 

B!!u 
USS 

Direct cmts 
P e ~ n n e l  362,600 
Social benefits 161,560 
Traveling expenses 292,860 
Audit 10.000 
Other direct costs 11.500 

Total 838,520 

I i d i m t  costs 
General t018i 

Executed 
from 

Miy 1,2002 
to Dceember 

(Unaudited) 

Execated 
from 

Febrnary 1.2003 
to Scptember 
a&@ Bahmce 
USS USf 



5. AVAILABLE FUNDS 

As of September 30, 2003, thc agmement's completion date. the available balance s h m i  in the 
huid accountability statcmnit and its reconciliation to cash balance wmpñscs: 

Balance in bank cunent account in foreign currency in P ~ N  
Balance in bank current account in foreign currency in Egypt 
Less: 
Balance of unused funds from Agreement ECES No. 104-SA-OI 
Accounu payable to agreements and suppliers 
Toial fonds pendiag refmnd to ECES 

Thc mnaining of the pro- is cumntly pending refund to ECES. 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

LNTERNAL CONTROL STRUCilJRE OF ILD AND TEü PROGRAMS FiNANCED TROUCH 
USAiD AND ECES: LAGA-00-9800047-00 YFORMALiZATION OF PROPERTY M WTM 
AMERICA", FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, TO APRIL 30. 2003, EEM-A- 
"PROGRAM TO CREATE AND PROMOTE A ESTADO DE DERECHO (RCZE OF UW) 
THAT INCLUDES THE MAJORiTY OF POOR PEOPLE", FOR THE PERIOD MAY l. M) 
DECEMBER 31,2003; AND ECES SIN L<FORMALIWTION OF BUSPIES IN E C W T .  POR 
THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, TO SEPTEMBER 30,2003 

lndependent auditon' opinion 



MDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON MTERNAL CONTROLS 

Managernent Council 
instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

Wc have audited the financia1 statcmaits of instituto Libertad y Dcmocraci. (hcrciiipfta iLD) rr of 
Darniber 31, 2003, as wcll as the fimd accountability statcmn~ts and their raxneiliatkm to arh 
balances of the prognms financed with fimds granted through coopnation agrcemmts tigncd mrh the 
U n i d  States Agency for hternational Development (hcrcinafter USAID) and through the -h 
cwperation agrecment with The Egyptian Ccnter for E c m M c  Studies (hereinaficr ECES), f a  the 
pmods: 

Finaiced througb USAlD 

1. LAG-AM)-98-00047-00 "Formalization of 
Property in Latin America" From January 1 to April30.2003 

2. EEM-A-00-03-0000S-00 "Program to Creatc 
and Romote a Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) 
that lneiudes thc Majotity of Pwr People " Fmm May I to Decembcr 31.2003 

Neanced througb ECES 

3. Agrremcnt ECES S/N "Formalization of 
Business in Egypt" From January 1 to Septcmbcr 30.2003 

and have issued our repow t h m n  dated May 7,2004. 

Wc conducied our audits in accordancc with U.S. Govcmmnt Auditing Standvds i d  by the 
Conptroller Gtnml  of the Unitcd Sta-. Thox standards raquirc that wc plan and pafonn ihc audit to 
obtain rrasonable assurance about whethcr the fuiaoeial siatmiaits of iLD and bie fund .ccamobility 
statements and their reconciliation to cash balances are f m  ofmatcrial MsNtemaits. 



l l ~  m a n a g m t  of ILD is rcsponsible for establishing and maintaining an intannl control muchirc. in 
fulfilling this rrsponsibiliíy, estimates and judgmcats by managmmt are rcquircd to asscss dr cxpcctad 
benefits and relatcd costs of intmial control s t n i c m  policia and proccdurrs. The objccaives of an 
internal control stnicturc are to provide managcmmt with rcasonable. but no< absolute, psslinmx dnt  the 
assets are safeguarded against loss h m  unauthorioad use a disposition; transactiais are aacutcd in 
accordance with management's authorization and in accordance with the tmns of the agremiaics; and 
transactions are morded properly to pennit the prepuation of the financial statemcnts of ILD, fund 
accountability statcrnents and their mmiliation to fash balances in mformity with the basis of 
accounting described in Note 2 to thc financial n a t m ~ n t s  of ILD and Note 2 u> thc fund yxamability 
statcments and their monciliation to cash balances. Because of inhcrcnt iimitations in any uitemai 
control shucture, errors or irregulatities may nevatheless occur and not be devcted. Also, projecba, of 
any evaluation of the stnicturc to future pcriods is subject to the risk that proccdurrs nmy become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectivcness of the dcsign and opcration of 
policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

In planning and pcrfonning our audit of the fund accountability siatemcnts and their rarineilution to 
cash balances of the progams: LAG-A-00-9840047-00 'Formaiitstion of Propaíy in Luio Ameria: 
for the pcriod January 1 to April 30,2003; EEM-A-0043-00005-M " P r q  10 Create ind Romac a 
Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) that includes thc Majority of Poor Peoplc", f a  thc pcriod May 1 to 
December 31. 2003; and convenio ECES S/N "Fonnalization of Business in Egypt", f a  thc p d  
January 1. to Septembcr 30, 2003, we obtained an understanding of the internal ccmtrol sbuturr. With 
respect to thc intcmal control shucture, we obtained an undmtanding of thc dcsign of mkvant pdicKs 
and procedures and whethcr they havc bcen placed in operation. and we a d  control risk m ada to 
detemune ow auditing procedures for thc purpose of exprrssing our opinion on the financia1 ~(~tcmcnts 
of iL.D and the fund accountability statetnents and their reconciliation to cash balances of the pmpmm 
not to provide an opinion on the interna1 control m c h m  of ILD. Accordingly. wc do noi cxprcss a r h  
an opinion. 

OUT considcration of the interna1 control s m c m  would not naxssañly disclasc al1 mttas in the 
interna1 control sbucturr that might be material wcahKssts unda standards cstablishcd by Ihc Aunican 
institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). A material weakness is a rcportable oondibai in 
which the design or opemtion of one or more of the specific interna1 control shucture elcmcnts does no8 
reduce to a relatively low leve1 the risk that errors or irregulatities in a m t s  that would be mtairl in 
rclation to the financial statnnaib of ILD, hmd accountability statnnaits and thcú rooariluWn to cash 
balances of the propm, and thc cost sharing schcduie may occur and noi be devcwd withm a Micly 
peiiod by employees in the normal come  of perfonning their assi@ hmctions. We med no mmus 
involving Ihc interna1 control stnicturc and its opcration that we considcr to be matalll wukmscs u 
defined above. 

As a result of ow review, we notcd certain manen involving the intcmal control m u c m  and IU 
operation that are included in Appmdix 1 hereto. Such ntanm do not necessarily cova al1 the 
wcaloiesses thc prescnt intcmal control shucturc could have given that. as explained bcforc, our 
consideration of the interna1 control stnicturc was not intended to ex- an opinion on said i n m l  
control structurc takcn as a whole. 



This report is uitendcd for thc inforrnation of USAID and ILD. Howem. upon release by USAID. this 
report is a maner of public record and its dishibuhon is not limited. 

CPC ~ e ~ i s t r a t i b  No 121 59 

May 7,2004 



INSTiTUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COMPLIANCE WlTH TEE TERMS OF TEE AGREEMENTS APPICABLE LAWS AMD 
REGULATIONS OF TBE PROGRAMS FiNANCED THROUGA USAID AND ECES: W G A -  
00-9800047-00 "FORMALIZATION OF PROPERTY IN LATW AMERICA", FOR TEE 
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1 TO A P W  30,2003; EEM-A-00-034WS-W "PROGRAM TO 
CREATE AND PROMOTE A ESTADO DE DERECHO (RLJE OF LAW) m T  ISCLUDES 
TfE MAJORITY OF W O R  PEOPLE", FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1 TO DECEMBER 31,200J. 
Ahl> ECES S/N "FORMALIZATION OF BUSINESS IN EGYPT", FOR THE PERIOD 
JAWARY 1 TO SEPTEMBER 30,2003 

lndependent auditon' opinion 



INDEPENDENT ALIDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 

Management Councd 
Instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

We have audited the fiancial statcments of Instituto L i h d  y Democracia (hereinah ILD) as of 
December 3 1,2003, as well as the fund accountability statcmcnts and their rrconciliation cash brLaces 
of the pro- financed with funds granted ihmugh eoopcration agreements signed with thc Unttd 
States Agency for Intemational Development (hereinaíter USAID) and ihmugh the -h coopenhat 
agreement with The Egyptian Center for Eeonomic Studies (hereinaíter ECES), for the paiods: 

Progrrms 

Financed througb USAID 

l .  LAG-A-00-98-0004740 "Formalization of 
Property in Latin America" 

2. EEM-AW3-00005-00 "Pmgram to Create 
and Promotc a Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) 
that includes the Majority of Poor People " 

Finaneed tbrougb ECES 

3. Ag-t ECES M 4  "Forrrialization of Business 
in Egypt" 

and have issued our reports thereon dated May 7.2004. 

Fmm January 1 to Apn130.2003 

Fmm May 1 to December 3 1.2003 

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. Govemrncnt Auditing S<andards issued by thc 
Comptmller Genetal of the Unitcd States. Those standards rquire that we plan and p c r f m  thc audit to 
obtain rrasonable a s s m c e  a h t  whcther the íinancial statemcnu of ILD and the fund accomtability 
statements and their monciliation to cash balanccs of the pro- are free of material MstaicmatL 



Compliance with agreements and subagreement tcrms and laws and rrguLatians rpplicabk to ILü is dw 
responsibility of the managcmmt of LLD. As  par^ of obiaining msonable asairPncc Pbwi w h e d ~ ~  the 
financia1 statements of LLD and the hind accouniability statemcnts and theü r s a r i l u t i m  to crsh 
balances of the programs are ñtc of material misstatemcnf we performed tests of ILD cmplunct W-I& 
certain provisions of agreements and applicable laws and ~gulations. Howevcr. our objecbw was na to 
provide an opinion on overall compliance with such povisions. Accordingly. we do not express a r h  m 
opinion. We also pcrfonned tests of ILD management's compliance with ccrtain provisions of agrccmcnl 
t m  and laws and regulations applicable to thc provision o í  cost shanng conaibutions. 

As a result of our review, we noted certain manen relating to compliance with the iana of the 
agreements, laws and regulations that affect the cooperative agreemcnt LAG-A-009-7-00 
"Fonnalization of Property in Latin America" ended on April30.2003 which. although m consida them 
as immaterial, would like to bring to your attention, and are included in Appendix 11 hemto. 

This repon is intendcd for the infomiition of USALD and iLD. However. qxm release by USAiD. this 
its distnbution is not limited. 

May 7,2004 



INSllTUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPUTATEON OF INDIRECT COST RATE OF ILD AND TEE 
PROGRAMS FMANCED THROUCH USAID AND ECES: LAGA-009g0001700 
"FORMALIZATION O F  PROPERTY M LATiN AMERICA", FOR THE PERIOD FROM 
JANUARY 1 TO A P W  30, 2003; EEM-A-00-03-0000500 "PROGRAM T O  CREATE AND 
PROMOTE A m A D O  DE DERECHO (RULE OF LAW) THAT INCLUDES THE MAJORiTY 
OF POOR PEOPLE", FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1 TO DECEMBER 31,2003; AND ECES W 
"FORMALlZATlON OF BUSINESS IN EGYPT". FOR THE PERIOD JAMJARY 1 T O  
SEPTEMBER 30.2003 

lndependent auditon' opinion 

Schedule of compuiation of indircct cost rate 

USS = United Siates dollar 



RJDEPENDENT AUDITORS' OPMION. 

Managemcnt Council 
Instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

Our audit was made for ihe purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financia1 statemcna of buhtuto 
Libertad y Democracia (hereinafier ILD) as of Deccmber 31. 2003 takm as a whole The scheduk of 
computation of indrrect wst rate coniained on page 46. prepared by h e  Adminisuatton of ILD, is 
presmted for purposes of addihonal analr j~s  and 1s not a r e q u i d  part of lhe basic financia1 staiancnts 
Such information has bcen subjected to thc auditing procedures applied in ihe audi~ of lhe basic financnl 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in al1 matenal rcspects in relation to rhe basic financial 
statements iaken as a whole 

Countenigned by? 

CPC ~e~ i s t r a t i oh  No 12159 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPUTATION OF INDIRECT COST RATE 
FOR THE PERlOD FROM JANUARY 1.2003 TO DECEMBER 31.2003 

Salaries 
Supplemcntary bencfits 
Sub-contractors wrvices 
Traveling 
Per diem amwnts 
O<her wveling expnws 
Ofticer supplKs 
Prínting and repoduction @ml<s, subscriptiw) 
Canmuniutions (cwRer smices. fax, cmail. portagc. 
telephom charges) 

Translatiw and ahn scwices 
Audit 
Lccal UMspatption 
Mixellane<nrr 
Oñia rmtal paynents 
Municipal rata 
securiiy 
Elstricity and water supply 
Oficc and equipmenl maintenance and rcpairs 
uisurancc 
Exchange diffcrmce 
Depmcialion and amonization 
Misccll- pmvisions 
Furn im and cquipmcnt (& USIS.000) 
Equipment (over USS5.000.00) 

TOTAL 

Calculation of the indirect cost m e :  

Ex- 
USS 

1272.450 
512,417 
291,074 
279.486 
95.803 
14.344 
22.386 

8.028 

59.665 
2 1.490 
11.924 
14,352 
27.050 
80.000 

5.735 
46.699 

5.628 
4233 
7.082 
2.050 
6.359 

18248 
8.420 

A m i m b t r d  
I.durrc 
cora 
USS 

329.1i9 
146.685 

1.760 

- 
- 

5,349 
106 

3 t i n  
L t  O5 

- 
14352 
17,175 
m.oo0 

5.735 
46.699 

5,628 
4.233 
7.08 

- 

To be read jointly with ihe ~ p o n  of Gris H c m h k  y Asociados on Inimiil Conmls. d a d  May 7. 
2004. 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACiA 

COST SWRING SCHEDULE OF COOPERATIVE AGREEMEM USAiü NO LAGA-98- 
00047-00 "FORMALIZATION OF PROPERTY IN LATIN AMERICA", FOR THE PERIOD 
FROM JANUARY 1 TO APRiL 30,2003 

Independent auditors' opinion 

Cost sharing schedule 

Notes to the cost sharing schedule 



MDEPENDENT AUDITORS' OPMlON ON THE COST SHARING SCHEDULE OF COOPERKTWE 
AGREEMENT No LAG-A-00-98-00047-00 

Management Council 
Instituto Libertad y Demomcia 
Av. Dei Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

We have reviewed the accompanying cost sharing schedule of cooperative apement N". LAG-A-OO-98- 
00047-00 "Fonmlization of Properiy in Latin America" p p s d  by Instituto Libertad y Danoawi. 
(ILD) for the period January 1,2003 to Apnl 30.2003. Our review was conducted in aaordure wiih 
standards atablished by the American Inshtute of Certified Riblic Accountants (AICPA). The pirposc 

of our rcview was to determine if the cost sharing contnbutions w m  pronded and accounted f a  in 
accordance with the terrns of the cooperative agrecmcnt. We also considered the interna1 conüols rehted 
to the provision of and accounting for cost sharing conüibutions. 

A review consists pnncipally of enquina of recipient's pmonnel and analytical pmoedures applied to 
tinancial data. It is substantially more limited in scope than an examination, the objective of ahich is the 
exprrssing of an opinion on the cost sharing schedule. Accordingly. we do not express such an opink. 

Bascd on our review, nothing camc to our anention that caused us to bclieve ihat iLD has not pmvided 
and accwntcd for cost sharing contributions in accordancc with thc icnns of ihe coopaative 

This rcport is intended for the infonnation of ILD and the U.S. Agency for lntcrnational Dcvtloprrnt 
(USAID). However, upon release by USAID, this report is a maner of public record and its disuibutiai 
is not limited. 

CPC ~egistration No. 12159 

May 7,2004 



liUSI1TUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

COST SHARiNG SCHEDULE OF COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT L A G A - W W 7 4 ü  
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1.2003 TO APRlL 30,2003 

COOPERATIVE ACREEMENT USAID No. LAG-AM)-984OM7-00 
PROJECT FORMALIZATION OF PROPERW k4 LATlN AMERICA 

COST SHARING SCHEDULE 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1,2003 TO APRlL 30.2003 
(In U.S. dollan) 

(N& 1) R a l  Incligíbk doamaad Nmr 
USS USS USS USS 

Funds from h e  AVINA Agrcement (Note 

2) 147.789 158,633 
147.789 158.633 

i- - 

The accompanying nota are an integral pan of the cosl sharing schedule. 



INSlTnTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

NOTES TO THE C m  SHARiNG SCHEDULE FOR THE PERlOD FROM JANUARY 1.2003 TO 
APRlL U). 2003 

1. COST SHARMG BUDGET 

According to the tems of the a p m e n t  signcd by Instituto Libertad y Drn>omcia (harintfta 
ILD), recipient of the funds and the Unitcd Sliitcs Agency for Internanonal Devrlopnait 
(USAID), ILD agms to contribute an amount not lesser than 25% of ihe contributicm rndc by 
USAID. During 2003. the USAID contnbution amounted to USS591.154, ihe unamt of 
US147.789 comsponding to shared costs. 

2. COST SHAIUNG EXECUTION 

The shared costs correspond to funds from the investmcnt agrccrnent AVINA No 20000139, the 
purposc of which is the enluation of the informal sector in The Philippincs and LÍM America 
Thc disburscments correspond to: 

Dired costs: 
Penonnel 
Social benefíts 
Fans and pcr d i  cxpnws 
Other d imt  c m  

Total di- c m  

lndirect costs 

Total 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

FOLLOW-UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS AUDIT OF aD AMI THE 
PROCRAMS FINANCED THROUGH USND AND ECES 

Follow-up on rccommcndations from pmious audit 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

FOLLOW-UP ON RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PREVlOUS AUDIT OF ILD AND THE 
PROGRAMS FiNANCED THROUGA USAID AND ECES 

We detail below the recommendation from the previous audit not adopted by instituto L i b d  y 
Democracia. Said mommendation is shown wth the same original nurnbering. 

Letter iaued by tbe former auditors, dated May 26, 2üO3, reiated to tbe evainatlon of t k  i i terul  
control structure of the cooperative sub-agreement signcd with Tbe Egyptiin Ceiter for Eroiomic 
Studia (ECES) No 1WA-01 

1. Accouna meiwble for USSI.009 no1 nfinlcd U 20 n o n h .  &mUg jror SuCApveucrct 
ECES ND IlU-SA-01 =FormrJ*nnOn of ihe Infonmi Urban Srclor iii E-". 

Frorn the examination of the documentation of urpenses of the fund secountability siaicment ai 
closing of the project financed by ihe Sub-Agrecmcni ECES-Egypt No 1044A-01 
"Formalilation of the informal Urban Sector in Egypt, for ihe period January I to Much 31. 
2002, it can be seen that thcrc is an account receivable for USSI.009 which has noi bccn 
reirnbursed by ECES. 

Comments from ILD Adminútration 
During the period of validity of this progran ILD asked ECES m l  times to p y  biis iawnit 
receivable, without obtaining any positive resulu. Upon conclusion of h e  d l  u a d  
balances, including ihe amount of this accounu mervable (USS1.009). must be reRhmdcd to 
ECES. In May 2004, ECES was informed that U D  havc revased this YXOM~ reccinbk, it 
being reflected in ihe financia1 statements as a rcfund of u n d  hinds to ECES. 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

GENERAL PURPOSE FiNANClAL STATEMENTS AS O€ DECEMBER 31.2003 

Independent auditors' opinion 

Balance sheets 

Siatements of activibes and changa in hstitutional quity 

Siatements of cash flows 

Nora to financia1 statemcnts 



Deloitte. 

DICTAMEN DE LOS AUDITORES INDEPENDIENTES 

To the Management Council 
instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Av. Del Parque Norte No. 829 
San Isidro 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of instituto Libertad y Democracia as of Dcccmbcr 
3 1, 2003. and the reiated statements of actinties, changn in institutional quity. and cash flous for the 
year ihen mded (expressed in U.S. dollars). l ime  financial statements are the mponsibili~y of iLD 
Administration. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ihese financial statements bavd on our 
audits. The financial siatements for the year ended December 3 1,2002, ~ r c  examincd by o<hn auditorr 
whose repon dated May 26,2003 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally afcepicd in Pem. Thosc 
standards rcquire that we plan and pcrform h e  audit to obtain reasonable assunuwx about whethcr the 
financial siatements are frce of material Mssiatements. An audit includa exanuning. on a tcu basis. 
evidence supporiing the amounis and disclosurcs in the financial statemenu. An audit also uicludcs 
assessing the accounting pnnciples used and significani estimates made by the Adminisuatiq as n d l  as 
evaluating the overall financial siatements preseniation. \Ve believe that our audit pro\~des a r c a s o ~ b l t  
basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 2(d) thex  financial statements, were prepared on the modificd cash basis. nluch 1s 
a basis of accounting different h m  accounting principln generally acccpted in Pera 

h our opinion. such financial siatements prcvnt fairly, in al1 material rcjpsu, Ihe financid posibon of 
instituto Libertad y Democracia as of December 31. 2003. and the rnults of its acti\itia and cash flon-s 
for the year then ended, in conformity wiih ihe basis of accounting dexribcd in note Z(a). 

Our audit also includcd ihe üanslation of amowits in Peruvian nuevos s o l a  into U.S. dollar amounts md 
in our opinion, said üanslation has becn made in accordance with the basis dcscribed in Note yb). Such 
U.S. dollar amounts are shown only for the convenimce of the m d m .  

The accompanying financial statements have been translated into English for Ihe conwniena of thc 
readen. 

CPC ~e~ i s t r a t i on  No. 12 159 

May 7,2004 

Audit .Tax.Consulring.Financial Advisory. 



Cl1HKl:NI ASSI3 S 
Caah nnd honks 
Accounir rcccivahlc hiini ~ y r c c ~ ~ i c i i i ~  
Oihcr nccounis rcccivahlc 
I'rcpaid cxpenws 

(,'IIHWIW'l I.IAI3II.I'SII~.S 
Ohliga~ions puyahlr 
Olticr accounir puyuhlr 

Total currcni liuhiltlic\ 
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INSTIT1ITIONAI. I:QIJl'I'Y 
Instituiional cquiiy 
Accumulaied rcsiili\ 
Nei supcravit 

Toinl instiiuiiiinal cquiiy 

T O T A L  A S S U S  

Sec noles lo financial staicmcnts - - 



msnmo LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

STATEMENTS OF ACTlVlTlES AND CHANGES IN iNSn1lJTIONAL EQUrrY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 1.2003 AND 2002 
In U.S. dollan 

INCOME 
Cooperative agreements 
Donations 
Translation income 
Miscellaneous income 

TOTAL 

EXPENSES 
P-nel expenscs 
Third party services 
T a m  
Sundiy management charges 
Exceptional charges 
Finance charges 
Provisions for the year 
Translation loss 

TOTAL 

NET SUPERAVIT 

NET ASSETS 
Balance at beginning of year 
Removals of fixed assets 
Adjustment to accumulated superavit 
Net superavit 

Balance at ycafs end 

See notes to financia1 statements. 



INSTITUTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACLA 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR M E  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 1.2003 AND 2002 
In U.S. dollan 

OPERATRJG ACTIVITIES: 
lncome hwn cooprative agrcmKnts 
Orher income 
P a , m t  to supplim 
Payment of rem-tions and social bcncfits 
Taxa paid - opcrehg paymmfi 

Net cash pmvided by (uscd h) opnting mivitia 144,178 (272,957) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 144.171 (272.957) 

CASH AT BEGINNRJG OF YEAR 191,505 161,462 

CASH AT YEARS END 3x5383 191,9lS 

RECONClLlATlON OF NET SUPERAVIT TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

N* supelavil 
Adjushncnls to net superavil: 

Dcpreciation and amortizaion 
Social bcnefits 
Prior ycars' adjtshncnts 

Dmeaw ( i )  h .srm: 
Accowts m i v a b k  h agmmnts  
Othcr accounts raeivable 
Rcpaid cxpcnsa 

lncrcaw (decrrax) in liabiliria: 
Obligations payable 
0the.r accounis payable 
Deferrcd inwme 



INSTiilJTO LIBERTAD Y DEMOCRACIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - - 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 1,2003 AND 2002 

1. IDENTIFICATION AND PURPOSE OF THE MSiTlUTE 

Instituto Libertad y Democracia ( k i n a f t e r  1LD) is a not-for-profit entitiy. registemi m 
the Register of Entities Exempt from Income Tax and in the Register of NonGovcmmaiml 
Development Organizations rccipient of lntemational Cooperation. It was constituted on 
September 30, 1980 and its main objective 1s to become a cultural centre for reflexion, 
research and scimtific discussion in the fields of the hwnanitics, social sciaiccs, 
economics, law, and in gmeral al1 the necessary disciplines to understand the Pccuvian 
reality and find f m  of cultural, m i a l  and m o m i c  developmmt. To attain its m i n  
objective. the ILD may pcrfwm the following functions: 

a. Pmmott and organize meeting& round-iable mnferenccs, syniposia, mnimm, 
workshopc, and in general al1 kinds of evmts in which there is an interchangc ofidcrs 
relating to the m a n a  usually addmsed by ILD. 

b. Conduct studies and trsearch, directly or through third parties, on Perunan mlity in 
al1 its aspccts, and cooperate in making known such studics, so they can havc a mw 
cultural significance in the country and could attain their objective to mnmbute to a 
better understanding of the problems. and the solutions Peru rquircs. 

c. Scnd Pmvian specialists abroad, to oner them better training and pmnit the 
interchange of ideas, knowledge and mearch methods with forcign specialists. 

d. Edit and finance the publication of books, booklets, magazincs. and any odwr 
matetials resulting from actinties dcvelopcd by LD. 

e. Organize a documentation cmtre on Pmvian themes, developing a library, magazine 
library, and any other manner of presmving infonnation 

The ILD has received the mognition as a not-for-proíit cultural centre extended by the 
hstiiuto Nacional de Cultura. 

In ordcr to fulfill its objcctivcs. the ILD has signed eoopcration agmements wirh the L'nited 
States Agency for Intemahonal Development (USAID) and the AVINA Foundation 
( A W A ) ,  and a -h cooperation agrccment with the Egypnan Cmtcr f a  Economic 
Studies (ECES), for the execution of the following prograna: 

With USAiü funds: 

Coopcrative agrummt No LAG-AM)-98M)047-00, intnidcd for the program 
"Formalization of Roperty in Latin America". 



Cooperative agrccmat No EEM-A-00-03-0000540. intadad f a  thc -Rognm to 
Crcatc and Romote a Estado de Derecho (Rule of Law) that includes the Majority of 
Poor People" 

With AWNA funds: 

Cooperative agreement No 20000139, intended for the pmgram "Fomulizaiion uid 
Capitalization of the Pmr People's Pmperty" 

With ECES funds: 

Agreement ECES SM, intended for the pmgram "Formalimion of Business in Eg'pt". 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Thc significant a f c o ~ t i n g  policies used by ILD for Rcording the iransacbons .ad thc 
preparation of the financial s t a t m t s  are as follows: 

(a) Buis  of prcpyitioi uid prescntstion 

The financia1 statements are prcparul and prescntcd using the b i s  of accumting of 
modified eash; i.e. on the basis of cash m i v e d  and disburscd. Additionally. al1 expcriscr 
made at year's end are bgsed on a pre-established budget. even if paid subscquently. as well 
as the estimates desxibed in note 2(c). 

In Pem, financial statements are prepared and presented in accordancc with occouaiing 
pnnciples generally acccpted in Pem, which compnsc the Intemational Accounting 
Standards (IAS) issucd by the Intemational Accounhng Stanlards Board 0 uid 
authorized by the Consejo Normativo de Contabilidad (CNC) to be in foroe and appllad m 
P m .  Supplementary, and as established by CNC, U.S. generally Deccptsd accounting 
principlcs may be used. In the case of not-forpmfit organizations the "Financúl 
Accwnting Standards No. 117-Financial Statemnts of Not-For-Profit Organirstions" is 
applicable in the preparation and p-tation of financia1 statemcnts. 

Additionally, in P m  financial statements prepad bDvd on historial coa ha= baa 
adjusted to constant cinrcncy to reflcct the effcct of the changes in the prachasing p o w  of 
the Pmvian currency (Nuevo Sol SI.). using the adjusiment factors denved iñnn tbc 
Nahon-widc Wholesale Rice lndex (WPI). Thc WPI accumulated pcrcentagcs f a  2003 
increased in 2% while in ycar 2002 iwrcascd in 1.67%. Thc Adminisuation has m uscd 
this accounting practicc, since its accounting policies and practices establish: %ccausc it ¡S 
a not-for-profit instiíution, ILD does not record in the aecounting h k s  the effccts of prkx 
variations, as rquircd by accounting principies generally accepted in Pcni. for corrnmial 
and other for-profit entities". Additionally. it considm the effccts are noi sipificant 

ILD keeps its accounting rccords in nuevos soles. 



The asse4 liabilities and net asscts as of December 31. 2003 and 2002, as -11 as the 
resulis of its activities for the ycars then cnded. have bacn hanslated frorn nuevos sdes mto 
U.S. dollars for conveniencc of the readers. To such effect. the financial statmrnts U1 
nuevos soles have been banslated into U.S. dollars a s  follows: 

The monetary ;ir~et and liability balances and non-monetary asst and liability 
balances have been translated at the exchange rate of the date of the otigin of thc 
transaction. 

The activities m l t  a m t s  have been translated at the exchange rata in forrc on 
the dates they were incurred. 

The translation difference is shown in the account "difference in translaiion", in the 
statement of activities. 

(e) Use of cstinuta 

The preparation of linancial statemcnts requircs the Adminisüation of ILD to t r d c  
estimates and assunrptions, for the detennination of ccrtain assct tal- as of the date of 
the financia1 statemmts. If in the future, the circumiances on which the esiimaics d 
assumptions are based were diffcrent, the corresponding estimates would be modiiied .nd 
their effects would be included in the detennination of institutional equity for thc year m 
which such change occurred, and of future years, if it w m  the case. The most signifíant 
estimates relating to the financial statements are the depnciation of fumihm and 
quipment, and the amoriizahon of intangibles. 

(d) Financinl instraments 

The rnain financial vsets and liabilities shom in the brlance shect are: & and bmb. 
accounts meivable agreements. othcr accounis mivable, obligations piylM+ md 
other accounts payable. The accounting policies for their recognition and r m a m m a i t  uc 
described hmin, in the corresponding notes. 

The classification of a fuiancial instnimcnt as a tinancial liability a as a nd 

instrumcnt is m& Ui conformity with tbc conúact thst originared this fmancial úimumait. 
The intcrests, losscs and gains rclating to a financial insüument classifial as a fmuicid 
liability are recognized as expcnsc or incomc. 

(e) Fnrniture and eqiipment 

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated deprceiation. Deprecutiat is 
computed using the süaight-line mcthod bascd on the useful life of the asscts, repcscnted 
by equivalent dcp ia t ion  mtes. Whcn exceeding USSS,000, fued assets acquircd for 
progmm are morded in "other asee" and are not subjat to d&¡tion; shwld the 
program donors decide to bansfa said assets to ILD upon conplction af thc projcet. thcy 
are morded as fixed vsets, at market value, their useful life bcing estimatul f a  heir 
depreciation. Lower value asscts are morded as cost of each p.ogram 



Disbursrments aftcr fúed asscts are bcing wd are capitalilrd as idditioiul cost of tbc 
assets. only whcn it is l ihly that such disburscmcnts will coniribute to the genentiai of 
futurc economic bmefits bcyond the Onginally assesscd standard performance of the 
assets. Disburscmnts for repain or maintcnamc are rccognid as an expcnsc whm 
incurred. 'Ihe cost and rclavd accumulatcd deprsiation of assets sol4 a pammcndy 
withdrawn from use, are eliminated from their respective accounts and any m l i i n g  l o s  is 
recognized as expcnsc. 

(0 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost and are shown nei of accrmulited 
amortization. Thc annual amortization is detcrmined using the straight-line method, b;iscd 
on thc estimated useful lifc of the asxts. The annual amortization is recognizcd as expaist. 

(g) Compensaiba for time of ~crvice (&d bcneliis) 

Employees' conipcrisation for time of scrvice is calculated in accordure Mth c w t  kgil 
regulations, and deposited in a financia1 institution elected by the employce. 

Donations received for the cxccution of p j c c t s  are depositcd in the prognm's buik 
account and recordcd in a liability account called " d e f e d  income", and are impitcd to 
the mults of thc actintics as the projcct expmses art incurred. Donations rmivcd and not 
contingcnt on the execution of projccts. are recognizcd as income on the date chey orc 
deposited in the institution's bank account. 

(i) Pronsions 

Rovisions for social bencfits. ncations, and othm pmpcr to ILD achvitief are rrcorded 
charged to accounis reccinble from agrremoits, and are imputed to expemc 8s the 
disbursements occur. 



3. CASH AND BANKS 

Cash and banks compriu: 

Fixed funds 
Cumnt accounts: 

Instituto Libertad y Democracia 
Cooperative agreement LAG-A40-9840047JM 
Cooperative agreement ECES S/N in Peru 
Cooperative agncmcnt ECES S/N in Egypr 
Cooperative agreement EEM-A-00-03-0000540 
Cooperative agreement AVMA 
Cooperative agreement EMT-A-00-01400 16-00 
Cooperative subagrrement ECES No. 104-SA-01 

Total 

The balance in the account corrcsponding to the cooperative agremmt LAG-A-00-98- 
0004740 as of Decernbcr 3 1.2003. should be transfemd to USAID as cstablished h i n ;  
accordingly it is not considered by the entity as b-abailabiliiy funds. 

4. A C C O W S  RECEIVABLE FROM AGREEMENTS 

This account comprises: 

Cooperative agreement EEM-A-00-03-0000100 
Cooperative a g m e n t  LAG-A#9&00047M) 
Cooperative sub-agreernent ECES No 104-SA-01 
Cooperative agreement AVMA 
lndirect costs 
ILD 

Total 

Accounts rrceivable &orn agreemmts comspond to obligations applicable to ycar 2003 
expcnses, paid in 2004 (vacations and p a y m u  to supplius). 



Otha accounis receivable comprise: 

2003 - 2002 
USS USS 

Deposiu in guarantee 
Personnel 
ILD loans to lndimt  Cosis 
ILD loans to cooperative a p m e n t  ECES SM 
Sub-agreemmt ECES No. 104-SA-01 
Cooperative agreement AVINA 
lndimt  Costs 
Sundry 

Total 

6. AND EQUIPMENT 

The movement in <he cost and accwnulatcd dcpreciation of fumiture and q u ~ p m a i i  was as 
follows: 

Dcprr- 
Ekginning Ending c*tioo 

Balamg Additim Remo& üalances bm 
USS USS USS USS USS (i 

Cost: 

Equipmeni 151,301 (18.905) - 1323% 
F d m e  and f ~ l l ~ m  53.83 (2.648) - 51.175 

Miscellaneous cquipment 7200 - - 7200 

Total 212,324 - (21,553) - 190,771 

Equipmeni 143.488 2,427 (18.682) - 127233 10andU 

Fumihm and fixnircs 46.093 2,536 (2.446) - 46,183 10 

Mixellaneous quipment 7200 7200 10 

Total 196.781 4,963 (21,128) - 180.616 

Net 15,543 - 10,155 - 



As of December 31, 2003. this account includes filly depreciated assets for USS14ó.846, 
which are still in use. 

The movernent in thc cost and accumulated amortrzahon of other assets u?is as follows: 

Amorii- 
Beginning Ending zation 
Balances Additions Removals Balanas 

USS USS uss USS 
cost: 

Software 13,956 - 13,956 
Rcsposibility beforc third partia 34.990 8374 43.364 

Total 48.946 8374 57320 

S o h  6.515 1.395 7.9 10 

Resposibility before third parties - 

Total 

Net 

Rcsponsibility before third pames comspond to aquisitions of asscts for o i n  USSS.000. 
made by the donors io cxccute the progrsms. 

Additions in responsibility before third partia comspond to ncquisit¡cms nmdc on v f o ~ t  

of prograrn EEM-A-00-03-00005-00 rccadcd igimd the acunmt *rrspaisibility befm 
third pames". 



8. OTHER A C C O W  PAYABLE 

Other accounu payable comprix: 

200 
USS 

Vacations 62.039 
lndirect cosu supplien 81.861 
ILD suppliers 38.019 
Cooperative agreement LAG-A-00-98-00047-00 
Cooperative apement EEM-A-00-03-00005-00 955 
Pending transfer to lndirect Cosu of agreement EEM-A-00-03-00005-00 14,864 
Cooperative a g r e e m t  ECES SIN 40.422 
Balance of unused hnds of subcooperative agreement ECES 
NO. 104-SA-01 174 

Cooperative agreement AVMA - 
Compensation for time of x ~ i c e  (social benefits) 2,078 
Sundry 106 

Total 

2002 
USS 

75283 
13,553 

2,162 
156.930 

- 

65,422 

358 
33.41 8 

- 

963226 - 
Accounts payable comspond to expenxs paid in 2004 

9. DEFERRED INCOME 

Deferred income cornpriscs: 

To be refundcd to donor 
Subagreement ECES No. 104-SA-01 
Cooperative agreement ECES SIN 
Cooperative agreement LAG-A-00-984047-00 
Cooperative agreement EMT-A-00-01-0001660 

To be applied to rnults of activities: 
Cooperative agreement EEM-Ad0-03-00005-00 



10. COOPERATNE AGREEEMENTS 

Cooperative agreemenu comprix: 

Cooperative agmment 521 -A-00-97-00042-00 
Cooperaiive agreement LAG-A-00-98-00037-00 
Cooperative agreernent EEM-A-00-03-0000500 
Cooperative agreement AVINA 
Cooperaiive agreement EMT-A004 1400 16-00 
Cooperative subagreement ECES No. 104-SA-01 

Cooperative agreement ECES S/N 

Total 

I l .  TAX SiTüATION 

The ILD was constituted with not-for-profit purposes and, under Law 27386 and its 
amdments .  the revmues destined to specific purposes in P m ,  of taxable foundations and 
not-for-profit associations h e  i n s b u m t  of constitution of which conipnus exclusivcly 
m e  or several o í  the following purposes: beneficence, m i a l  assistancc, cducation, 
cultural. rientific, artistic. literary, sporting. political. trade union and housing. proded 
no1 dimibuted. dircctly or indircctly, to the m i a t e s  and the by-laws of which mtt dut 
their equity will. in case of dissolution, be destined to any of the purposcs refcnrd to 
above, will be exempt from Income Tax until Derernbcr 31.2006. 

It should be mentioned that ILD is within the scope of application of fourth- and fifth- 
category incomc tax, uIraordinary diduiíy hx Md ESSALUD unimbutions. 'Ihacfac, 
the ILD monthly tax rebims for said taxes not Lpscd, are pcnding of revicw by tbc hx 
authorities. &cause of the possible intcqmtations the tax authonties may have of -1 
legal nomis, it is not possible to determine whcther liabilities for ILD wll  ariu or not hom 
the reviews pcnding if conducted, thus any eventual major tax or ovcrcharge which may 
arisc from fiscal revicwr would be applied b cxpmws of thc fiscal ycar in which it is 
determined. Howcver, in thc opinion of h e  ILD Administration iherr should not be any 
additional tax or overcharge. 



SühíMARY OF FINDLNGS ARlSMG DülUNG THE EXECUTION 
OF OUR EXAMINATION, RELATiNG TO THE IhTERNAL CONTROL 

SIñUcTuRE 

We have noticed that the accwnt "other assets" is included as pan of the tssc<s ia tbc 
balance s k t  as of Decembcr 31,2003, the balance of which as of n r h  datc (C'S43.364) 
comprixs assets not propcrty of ILD. Thcse assets werc acquired as pan of thc progrinn. 
using funds from USAID; an amount of USS34.990 comsponds to fued assets of pognm 
LAG-A-00-98-0004740 which cnded on April 30, 2003 and was to USAlD m 
January 23, 2004, and ihe othcr amount of USS8.374 comsponds to 6 x 4  anca of 
program EE-A-00-0340005-00 cunrntiy in forcc. 

Critenon 

As established in Circular No. 122 "Con Principies for Non-RoFitOrgMiratiais" 
(revised), issued by the "Oñice of Managemcnt and Budget", as cquipmcnt m d  othcr 
capital disbursements are considered al1 those exceeding the capitalization limit cstlblished 
by thc mtity or exceeding the amount of USSS.OOO, having to be reponed as n r h  in the 
program's fund accountability statcment. 

Cause 

The iLD Adminisüation mentioned that the situation obsavcd occurs b u s e  k y  
accepted the former auditors' suggestion, to control the assets q u i d  under the 
within the balance shcet accounts. Hmce, the account, "other assets" was used to record 
hose assets purchased under the program thc ownmhip of which is condinoncd by thc 
donor to the completion of the program. 

This siiuation causes thc balance shcct of ILD as of k e m b c r  3 1.2003. to contain a s e s  
not of its property. 

Recommendrtion 

Eliminate from the aceounts in the balance s k t  01 ILD. those assets acquired f a  
programs which have not yet been transferred to the entity. Simultancously, we suggest to 
open memoranda accmts  so as to control said asseis. off the balance shm. 



2. Finding 

We have noticed that as of December 3 1,2003, an amount of USS8.350 carrsponduig lo 

the disbursement made to Capitol S e ~ c c  in October 2002 was included as part of the 
balance in the sccount "disburuments to be accounted forw. This imounf beuusc of its 
age and not having been liquidated in due instance, did not affect the rcsult of activities in 
its corresponding period. 

Criterion 

It is a healthy interna1 control practice tn an entity. to liquidate disbrirumarts to be 
accounted for in a reasonable period of time. for example t h m  monihs. 

According to the Administration of ILD, this advance was duc to scniccs tn the 
organizahon of the intmational wnfmnce  established in the program's plan of activities, 
which was postponed for several months. 

The siiuation observed causes the balance sheet as  of December 3 1,2003, to incide in the 
account "prepaid expenses" an amount of USS8.350 for expenses which should have been 
charged to results of activities in 2003, and not be defemd to h e  next year because of the 
lack of an adequate account analysis. 

Recommendrtion 

Establish wrinen policies indicating reasonable p o d s  for the liquidaticm of disburscrncnts 
to be accounted for. 

3. Finding 

We have noticed that the balance as of Deocmbcr 31,2003 of the vcount *comperipuon 
for time of service" ((33) of USS2.078, to an amount not timeiy dqositcd, 
belonging to several employces who workbd in thc p o p m  LAG-A-00-9&0004740 which 
e x p i d  on April30, 2003. 

As established tn articles 6 and 7 of the Labor Competittvencss and Roduitivity Law and 
its amendmcnts, CTS must be dcposited monthly. w~thin the 10 days in thc month 
following that in which the bencítt acnues; othmrise. the employer is obligated to pay the 
interests generated as from the noncompliance. 



Cause 

According to the Administration of ILD. this situahon 1s due to an crror in ihc calcuiahai 
of the compensation for timc of services related to the pmgram LAG-AM)-98-00007-00, 
which shows a lack of aipmision by thc pmon rrsponsiblc and Iack of wpcwinca by u, 
accountant, due to the pmoml reduction that took place at ha< time. When this situation 
was detected. the pending balance was rccorded. which was paid in March 2004. 

The s~tuation describcd above causes the balance shcet as of Dcccmber 3 1.2003 to includc 
an amount not financed as pan of [he balance of the account "compensaiion for time of 
services". 

Insbuct the pmon responsible for processing thc ac«>unt -comprnuuion for time of 
services", so that al1 the conccpts considered in ihe calculation are contemplated. 



SUMMARY OF FLNDINGS ARISING DURlNG THE EXECUnON OF OUR 
EXAMINATION RELATED TO COMPLlANCE Wii M E  AGREEMüNTS AND S U B  

AGREEMENT, LAWS AND RECLWTIOKS 

On January 23, 2004, the Iist of fixed assets acquired for thc program LAG-A-OO-98- 
0004740 "Formalization of Property in Latin America" %as sent to CSAID, nl~ich 
program according to the terms of the agreemcnt mded on Apnl 30.2003. As of üeccmber 
3 1,2003, the total amount of fixed asseis acquired for the pmgram was USS34.990 

Appendix 3.23 "Ownenhip and Use of Fixed Assets". paragraph (d) of the Coopmiion 
Agreement signed by ILD and USAID, cstablishes that 30 days aRer eonipletion of the 
program iLD rnust repon to USAID, a lis1 of al1 asscts with n l u r s  highn than 
USSS.000. It should be indicated that in case USAID failed to issuc an m e r  nithin the 
120 calendar days, said asseis should be m s f d  as fixed asseis of ILD. 

Cauw 

As siated by the Administration of ILD, the failure to timely communicate to USAID thr 
lis1 of the pmgmn's fixed assets, was due to the fact that unhl Scptembcr 2003, the 
Adminisuation of ILD was negotiating the obtaining of new financing mth CSAID. ud 
according to the convmations, the finding obligation would k by mcans of an exlatnai 
a m d m e n t  to said program. 

The siniation described above causes thc non-compliance with thc provisiom of Appcad¿x 
3.23 Wwnership and Use of Fixed Asscts", pangraph (d) of thc Coopmtion Agrcanmt 
signed by ILD and USAID, by having clapsfd 268 days from cxpiry of <he agrcemait ud 
121 since September 24,2003, when the ncw coopmation agrrrmcnt was signcd. Also. the 
delay in the sending of informaiion, pmventcd USAID from dctemining h e  final 
destination of the p r o p r n  fixed assets as of Deccmbcr 3 1.2003. 

Reeommendntion 

Comply with the periods established in thc cooperation agrrrmcnts signed wiih the dawxs. 



On F e b w  13, 2004. the remaining of the funds assigmd to program LAG-A-00-98- 
0004740 "Fwmalization of Pmpcrty in Latin America" was sent io USAID; which 
program according to the temis of the coopcration agrccment. mded on Apnl30.2003. As 
of December 31.2003, the remaining of the funds assigned to the pmgram is USS240.530. 

Appendix 3.5 "Termination and Suspension". pa rapph  (d) of ihe Cooperarion Agmmmmi 
signed by ILD and USAID, establishcs that 30 days aAer completion of thc ILD 
must cornmunicate and refund io 1ISAID. the program funds no1 spent. 

Canse 

As stated by ihe Admnismhon of ILD, the failure to hmely communicatt to USAID thc 
progam funds not uscd, was due to thc fact that unttl September 2003, thc Adminisf~abon 
of ILD was negobahng ihe obtaming of new financing w th  USAID. According to ihe 
conversations wth  USAiD, this would by means o í  an extcnsion amcndmcnt to said 
progran thus the balance was uscd to cover operating expcnws dunng thc monihs of 
negotiahon These hmds wcre retmbursed upon the signlng of thc ncw agmnxnt  and 
regulanzatton of the flow of funds 

The situation describcd above causes the nonsompliancc with the provisions o í  Appcndu 
3.5 "Termination and Suspension", paragraph (d) of the Cooperation Agreement si@ by 
ILD and USAID, by having elapsed 121 days since September 24, 2003, when thc new 
coopc~ation agrecment was signed. Also. this situation causes the inclusion ofUS240540  
as part of the bank balance of ILD as of December 3 1. 2003, which are not of k c  
avaiiabiiity for ILD. 

Recommendation 

Cornply with the pcriods estabiished in the coopcration apeanmis  signcd with the donars. 


